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July 20, 2000

Ms. Judy Tinkham
Qwest Corporation
200 South 5" Street

Suite 2400 - : . .
Minneapolis, MN 55402 F u_{ c GF Y

Ms. Judy Rixe '

Qwest Corporation A _ .

200 South 5" Street | By fucsimile & U.S. mail

Suite 2400 .
Minneapolis, MN 55402

Mr. Ron Van Zandbergen
Qwest Corporation
1314 D.0O.T.M. - 6™ Floor
Omaha, NE 68102

Re: UNE-P Pricing

Pursuant to Eschelon’s interconnection agreements with U S WEST Communications,
Inc. (now Qwest) (“Qwest-USWC™), Eschelon asks Qwest-USWC to immediately convert
Eschelon's resold lines to UNE-P pricing. In this letter, Eschelon suggests a process that will
allow USWC to physically convert the resold lines to UNE-P without undue burden or fear of
penalty while also ensuring that Eschelon is not deprived of its right to appropriate pricing under
the interconnection agreements. A list of lines for conversion in Minnesota is enclosed.
Additional lines also need to be converted in other states pursuant to the applicable
interconnection agreements, but the bulk of the lines for conversion at this time are in Minnesota.
With respect to states other than Minnesota, Eschelon understands that Qwest-USWC to date has
taken the position that it will not provide UNE-P at all, unless Eschelon signs a contract

amendment. Please let us know if this remains the position of Qwest-USWC.

Backeround

Eschelon’s interconnection agreement in Minnesota (“Agreement”) requires Qwest-
USWC to provide combinations, such as UNE-F, to Eschelon. See, e.g., Agreement Part A,
137, see also Order After Remand, MPUC Docket No. P421/CI-99-786 (Mar. 14, 2000) at p. 10
(“Order After Remand”). This requirement has been a part of the Agreement since its inception.
It was part of the AT&T/WCOM contract adopted by the Minnesota Public Utilities Commission
(the “Commission™) in its Order in December of 1996 (which includes a true-up mechanism for
pricing back to that time). Therefore, CLECs should have been able to order combinations at the

corresponding UNE-P rate over this time period. Instead, Qwest-USWC publicly and repeatedly
' 001.6¢
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stated its policy that it would not provide combinations to CLECs. This forced CLECS, where
they had no facilities, to either forego entering the market or to act as resellers and thus pay
higher rates. Qwest-USWC has taken the position that its actions were justified because its legal
obligation to provide combinations was unclear until recently, when the United States Supreme
Court issued a order on the issue in January of 1999 or even later when the FCC's unbundling
rules became effective in February of 2000. See, e.g., Qwest-USWC's Proposed Amendment

No. 5, at Recitals (first “whereas” clause).

Given this background, if Qwest-USWC and Eschelon do not establish a mutually

agreeable process for converting Eschelon’s resale lines to UNE-P, Eschelon obviously has the -

ability to pursue legal actions to seek retroactive payments based on UNE-P pricing. Eschelon
could, for example, seek the difference between the resale price and the UNE-P price for all of
its resold lines, including |FB, Centron, and Centrex, in all of its states, from commencement of
business to present and going forward. After all, CLEC orders would not need to be converted at
all, if Qwest-USWC had offered combinations earlier. Qwest-USWC should bear the
responsibility for putting the lines in the position they would have been in had it not violated the

FCC rules and its interconnection agreements. Even assuming rates would not apply -

retroactively back to commencement of business, other dates that a court or commission might
adopt include January of 1999 (when the Supreme Court ruled), November of 1999 (when the
FCC issued its unbundling order), February of 2000 (when the FCC's order became effective), or
~ other dates. If any of these dates were adopted, Eschelon would receive compensation from
Qwest-USWC for a period of time going backward. Eschelon reserves its right to seek such
compensation. At the same time, however, Eschelon’s primary concern is to move forward with

its business plans quickly and aggressively. ‘

Therefore, although Eschelon could pursue such arguments, and will if necessary,
Eschelon would first like to fully explore with Qwest-USWC whether' Qwest-USWC will
convert Eschelon’s existing resold lines to UNE-P now, as is, without additional, unnecessary
paperwork or electronic submission, at appropriate rates. [As discussed with respect to Qwest-
USWC's proposed amendment relating to combinations, the appropriate rate does not include the
non-recurring charges for each element. See Qwest-USWC Proposed Amendment No. S,
f1.1.4.1.2. The Minnesota Comumission did not approve such charges, and other commissions
have expressly rejected them. See Opinion and Order, In re. Petition of Sprint for Arbitration,
ACC Decision No. 62650, p. 12 (June 20, 2000) (“U S WEST is not entitled to a separate charge
for each individual element combined . . . ."). Such charges are particularly inappropriate in a
conversion setting, because conversions do not require those activities.]

If Qwest-USWC will convert Eschelon’s lines pursuant to Eschelon’s proposed approach,
Eschelon is willing to discuss and agree upon an arrangement under which Eschelon will forego
retroactive payment in exchange for obtaining UNE-P pricing going forward from the date of
this letter. And, provided the terms discussed below are met, Eschelon will waive intervals and
credits due to Eschelon for Qwest-USWC’s failure to comply with the applicable intervals for a
specified period of time with respect to existing resold orders that will be converted to UNE-P.
Eschelon has raised this issue in discussions with Ron Van Zandbergen and his team, ﬁ gil ég{
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the account team, and indicated that it would follow up in writing. This letter both does so and
constitutes a formal notice and request under the interconnection agreements. Eschelon will first
describe its understanding of Qwest-USWC’s suggestion for converting the lines and then will
outline Eschelon’s approach.

Owest-USWC’'s Approach

In a proposed multi-state contract amendment, Qwest-USWC has proposed establishing
“a managed project for conversion of lines from resale to UNE-P” that requires Eschelon to

“submit, via IMA, a maximum of " of those resold lines to UNE-P per month.” See Qwest-

USWC Proposed Amendment No. 5 at 11.1.3.7.7 (with Qwest-USWC suggesting a cap of 500
orders per month in a previous draft). - ‘

Qwest-USWC has suggested that it may be willing to agree to an Effective Bill Date
earlier than the date upon which Qwest-USWC actually processes conversion orders. See id
Qwest-USWC has conditioned its willingness to do.so, however, upon Eschelon’s agreeing to re-

submit all of its orders, using IMA, and to limit the number of orders it can submit per month .

(such as 500 permonth). See id.

At 500 orders per month, Eschelon's approximately 6,000 1FB resold lines in Minnesota
would not be fully converted for at least a year. And, any additional lines, including Centon and
Centrex lines not moved to Eschelon’s facilities or lines in other states, would extend the time
period even longer. Qwest-USWC's proposal would force Eschelon to wait more than a year
before receiving the full pricing advantages that it should be receiving today.

Qwest-USWC has indicated that it needs a limitation on the number of orders to be
converted per month because it physically cannot handle thousands of orders at this time, and
some of its UNE-P products are still under development. - See, e.g., Qwest-USWC Proposed
Amendment No. §, {1.1.3.7.7, 1.13.6. & 1.13.6.1. In particular, Qwest-USWC has expressed
concemn that it cannot meet required provisioning intervals if it must convert all of the lines at
once. For example, Qwest-USWC indicated in a previous draft of its Proposed Amendment

No. §, that “CO-PROVIDER agrees to work in good faith with USWC on all issues, including, if

necessary, extending . .. intervals, if CO-PROVIDER orders and/or projects orders for more
than 500 UNE-P lines in any one month.” See id., previous draft at 1.3.9.7 (emphasis added).
If Qwest-USWC does not meet the intervals set out in the Agreement, Qwest-USWC is required
to make certain payments to Eschelon. See, e.g, Agreement, Att. l1; Stipulation and
Agreement, In re. Merger of Qwest and USWC, MPUC Docket No. P-3009, 3052, 5096, 421,

3017/PA-99-1192 (Feb. 2000).

Eschelon’s Approach

Eschelon understands that Qwest-USWC is concerned about meeting the intervals in the
agreements or paying credits for failure to do so, just as Qwest-USWC undoubtedly understands
Eschelon’s need to obtain UNE-P pricing at the earliest possible time. These two obBcéiie%
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need not be mutually exclusive. Eschelon is open to negotiating a managed project for
conversion of lines from resale to UNE-P. Eschelon has no interest in making this difficult for
Qwest-USWC to accomplish. As a good faith demonstration of this, Eschelon is willing to
discuss and agree upon a waiver of the intervals and credits due to Eschelon for Qwest-USWC's
failure to comply with the applicable intervals for a specified period of time with respect to
existing resold orders that will be converted to UNE-P. Eschelon is also willing to provide a
dedicated team to work on the conversion. Moreover, Eschelon recognizes that, if individual
orders were submitted via IMA to place the orders, a certain percentage could be rejected and
resubmitted, delaying the date on which pricing would take effect. Currently, the rejection rate is

less than 10 percent. Therefore, Eschelon s willing to agree that pricing for 10 percent of the .

lines for conversion would not take effect until 30 days from the date of this letter.

Eschelon’s willingness to agree ‘to these terms is conditioned upon Qwest-USWC
agreeing: (1) to an Effective Bill Date earlier than the date upon which Qwest-USWC actually
processes conversion orders (.., at least the date of this letter, except pricing for 10% of the
lines, which would take effect 30 days from the date of this letter), and (2) to convert Eschelon’s

existing resold lines, as is, without requiring re-submission of those orders via IMA. or otherwise.

Qwest-USWC would convert Eschelon’s resold lines to UNE-P based on the attached list (rather
than individual orders), as further described below.

The Effective Bill Date was discussed above. With respect to the second condition, both
practical and legal considerations dictate that Qwest-USWC not require Eschelon to manually re-
type thousands of orders into IMA when Qwest-USWC knows the identity and current
functionalities of each of Eschelon's existing resale customers and can technically convert them

without new individual orders. The end-user customer’s functionalities will not change, and .

conversion to UNE-P requires only a change in billing or administrative information without
disruption to the service of the end-user customers. ‘There is no technical reason for requiring
submission of each, individual order. Qwest-USWC has the ability to simply convert the lines as
is from resale to UNE-P. Conversion from resale to UNE-P is transparent to the end-user
customer. See Agreement, Att. S, §4.5 (requiring Contiguous Network Interconnection without
any disconnection or disruption of functionality). Because customers receive the same
functionality and features, regardless of whether their telephone service is being provided by
resale or UNE-P, they have no need to know how or when a conversion is done. The customer’s

service does not change; pricing for Eschelon does change,

Moreover, requiring Eschelon to use IMA to submit orders compounds the problem. Use
of IMA is still a highly manual process without full electronic flow through of orders. Currently,
the process results in rejection of many orders without explanation. Eschelon has been
requesting Qwest-USWC’s policy for rejection of orders for some time, and Qwest-USWC has
not yet provided that policy. As a practical matter, use of IMA, under USWC’s proposal, would
further prolong the delay before UNE-P pricing is applied to Eschelon's orders. As a legal
matter, requiring use of IMA is anticompetitive. In Minnesota and other states, commissions
have found that IMA provides discriminatory access to USWC’s OSS. See, e.g., Order
Resolving Cost Methodology, Requiring Compliance Filing, and Initiating Deaveraging

001¢
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Proceeding, /n re. Generic Investigation of USWC's Costs, MPUC Docket No. P-442, 5321

3167, 466, 421/C1-96-1540, at {18 (May 3, 1999). USWC cannot reap the benefit of charging

higher rates while it forces its competitor to use a delay-producing, discriminatory interface to
submit conversion orders.

Enclosed is a list of Eschelon’s resale lines that need to be converted to UNE-P first. [t
includes approximately 6,000 1FB lines in Minnesota. As indicated above, the Agreement
requires Contiguous Network Interconnection without any disconnection or disruption of
functionality. See Agreement, Att. S, 4.5, Eschelon believes that all of these lines should be
converted to UNE-P in a manner that the customer's service does not change. This includes -
voice mail. Eschelon’s understanding, however, is that Qwest-USWC has taken the position that
it will not provide voice mail with UNE-P, even if Eschelon'is willing to pay the resale rate for
voice mail. And, as a result, voice mail may be dropped during conversion from resale to UNE-
P for those customers with Qwest-USWC's voice mail. Please let us know whether that is
Qwest-USWC's position and, if so, the basis for that position. Naturally, in the meantime,
Qwest-USWC should not take any action that would disrupt any individual customer’s service,

[ncluding loss of voice mail. If this is not Qwest-USWC's position, please include the voice mail, -

without disruption, when the orders are converted.

Please convert the resold lines of Eschelon’s customers to UNE-P pricing immediately,
With respect to non-pricing, provisioning issues, Eschelon will work with Qwest-USWC on a
managed process and schedule to complete the conversions in an orderly manner, including use
of a dedicated team for this process. And, provided Eschelon’s conditions are met, Eschelon will
waive intervals and credits due to Eschelon for Qwest-USWC’s failure to comply with the
applicable intervals for a specified period of time with respect to existing resold orders that will
be converted to UNE-P. Specific, details of the waiver can be worked out, if Qwest-USWC - -
proceeds with this approach. We look forward to discussing with you a managed process for
physically completing the conversions along the lines outlined in this letter.

Please provide a written response to this letter no later than July 27, 2000.

Sincerely,

A
PP

F. Lynne Powers

Vice President, Finance

Enclosure

cc: Pat Kline
Qwest Corporation
150 South 5™ Street, Suite 570
Minneapolis, MN 55402
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Charles Ward

Qwest Corporation
1801 California Street
Denver, CO 80202

Qwest Corporation

Director Interconnection Compliance

1801 California, Room 2410

Denver, CO 80202 .- by Overnight Express

U S WEST/Qwest Law Department
Attention: General Counsel, Interconnection
1801 California Street, 51% Floor

Denver, CO 80202 - by Overnight Express
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From: Fahey, Maureen G.

Sent: Tuesday, August 15, 2000 2:25 PM

To: rixe@uswest.com

Cec: Betsy Tower; Bob Pickens; Dennis Ahlers; Donald Olds; Garth Morrisette: J

Oxley, Jennifer Larson; Jessica Johnson: Julie Dzubay; Karen Clauson;
Karen Nystrom; Melissa Tomlinson; Steven Fredricks: Tammy Fawver;
Timothy Bailey; William Markert

Subject: Qwest/Eschelon UNE-P 8/14 Meating Notes

Judy:

ATTENDEES:
Eschelon: Jessica Johnson Tim Bailey, Don Olds, Bill Markert, Maureen
Fahey, Karen Nystrom, Karen Clauson, Garth Morrisette

Qwest:  Judy Rixe, Erica Hollis, Scott Ellison, Peggy Bissing (sp?), Linda
(Cheyenne Center)

SUMMARY:

Jessica Johnson listed the issues relating to UNE-P to which Eschelon had
asked Qwest to respond: (1) Methods of placing orders (for change from
resale to UNE-P on existing Eschelon lines) and rejection of those orders [see
8/10 email below]; (2) USOCs and taxation issues; (3) Billing; and (4)
Features.

1. METHODS OF PLACING ORDERS AND REJECTION OF ORDERS -

Eschelon asked Qwest to review the UNE-P process, including who at Qwest
works the orders (indicating that someone at Qwest in Dallas had spoken to
Tim Bailey, whereas Esclielon had been told that all UNE-P orders were
processed in Cheyenne). Qwest explained that, currently, several centers
process orders. Qwest indicated that it plans to have a dedicated typist in
Cheyenne (Linda). Qwest clarified that Linda will be the point of contact for
UNE-P orders, but that others (in Cheyenne) will also work on the orders.

Eschelon asked how many UNE-P lines or orders Qwest can handle pe£ day.
Peggy agreed to talk with Bud Taylor, Center Manager, and will get that
answer for us. %

Peggy (Qwest) indicated that she believed that changing from resale to UNE-
P involved only translations work on Qwest's side.

Eschelon recapped its experience in attempting to place orders changing its

customer lines from resale to UNE-P. When Qwest and Eschelon initially

talked about the UNE-P order process, Qwest told Eschelon to place the -
orders using IMA on a "Conversion as Specified" basis [6/30 and 7/12].
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Qwest completed a couple, or a few, orders via this method. After those first
test orders, IMA would not accept additional orders that Eschelon placed on a
Conversion as Specified basis, After calling the IMA Help Desk, Tim
Bailey's team placed orders as Change Orders to test whether IMA would
process such orders on a "Change" basis. IMA processed these orders.
Eschelon told Qwest's account team of this development during a conference
call {on July 19] and relied on the Change process to test processing of
additional orders. Eschelon submitted orders on a Change basis. IMA
accepted the orders, and Qwest processed them when submitted on a Change
 basis. Qwest processed approximately 16 orders on a Change basis. The end-
users experienced no known downtime or disruption. Suddenly, Qwest began
to reject orders placed on a Change basis and indicated that the orders must be
placed as Conversions [8/8-8/9: On 8/9, Eschelon opened an Escalations
ticket, #432820).

Eschelon (Tim Bailey) asked for a technical explanation for the requirement
that such orders be placed as Conversions. Peggy said that Qwest's expert
was not on the call, so Qwest could not answer specific questions.

Eschelon (Tim Bailey) said that, for a new POTs line, IMA has a "recap"
feature that auto-populates certain information. For these orders, however,
IMA does not allow use of the recap function. All features must be manually
re-typed. It appears that IMA may not allow us of this function because the
customer is our own customer. When an existing Qwest customer calls and
makes a change, however, the order would not be treated as a Conversion (it
would be a Change). Eschelon also pointed out that, when Eschelon submits
an order to change a 1FB customer to Centrex 21 or 1FB to a Measured Line,

“Qwest requires this to be done in IMA via a Change Order. Qwest does not
require submission of such orders as Conversions, Peggy from QWEST
indicated that the UNE-P change was a service type change. Eschelon
responded that a 1FB to Centrex 21 or 1FB to Measured is also a service type
change, and Qwest processes these as Changes. Eschelon stated that,
therefore, it knows of no valid reason why Qwest requires a Conversion order,
instead of a Change order, for only this particular product (UNE-P). Eschelon
said that these orders should be Change orders, like other products. If,
however, Qwest forces Eschelon to place these orders on a Conversion 4s
Specified basis, Qwest, at a minimum, needs to make the recap function
available. It is our understanding that the Retail channel at Qwest has access
to the "Recap" feature/button. :

Eschelon (Maureen Fahey) said that, in addition to taking longer and being
cumbersome, using Conversion as Specified rather than Change orders raises
the question of customer impact. Eschelon asked, if these orders are
processed as Conversions, whether the customers would lose service and/or
features. Eschelon needs to know if there will be any customer impact. Peggy
agreed to check on this and get back to us.
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Eschelon indicated that it has provided copies of the rejected orders to Qwest
and pointed out that Mike Meyers (sp?) of Qwest processed those orders.
Qwest agreed to find out the reason for its requiring re-entry of all USOCs.
Eschelon asked for a status on the Rejected orders; Linda will get that.

Eschelon indicated that, if it must place these orders at all [see Eschelon's
letter re, UNE-P pricing dated 7/20/00], the most efficient means of doing so
would be to place them on a Change basis. - »

Eschelon also asked Qwest to identify the location of any documentation or
training as to how to place such orders. Qwest (Peggy) indicated that the
process is not in the DMP, and she could not find instructions on the web
while we talked. She agreed to have Judy provide a URL for any
documentation after the meeting. Eschelon asked that the documentation be
specific to this type of orders (changing an existing Eschelon customer from
resale to UNE-P), rather than for an initial UNE-P order.

Eschelon asked whether we could continue to place orders on a Change basis
in the meantime, until Qwest responds to our requests. QWEST indicated that
it would like Eschelon to hold off on placing more orders via Change. Qwest
(Linda) said she would check on this, and Qwest would respond by 8/15. She
said that she needs to check on why this is taking so long.

Eschelon (Tim Ba1ley) said that someone at QWEST (Bonnie Lace) told him
that Qwest was requiring placement of the orders on a Conversion as
Specified basis to allow for order "flow through." But, it is our understanding
that, if Remarks are placed on an IMA order, those orders cannot go the "flow
through" route. Remarks are required on most of these orders, so they would
not flow through anyway.

2. USOCs/TAXATION -

The Sample UNE-P Invoice provided by Qwest to Eschelon included taxation
charges. Eschelon indicated that, in the past, it has not had to include taxation
USOCs and that it understood that other charges (such as federal acces$
charge, PICC, EAS, etc.) are not applicable to UNE-P. Qwest (Erica)
indicated that it would check on this and provide a response as to the proper
charges and how they will appear on the bill.

Eschelon (Garth Morrisette) indicated that it does not believe the LNP charge
(which appears on the Sample UNE-P Invoice) is allowed under the
Minnesota commission's order. Eschelon said that it would send a letter to
this effect to Qwest. Qwest indicated that it would give the letter to its
attorneys for response.

Eschelon 025311




Eschelon (Tim Bailey) indicated that, in the past, if USOCs were not
addressed, they were dropped. Qwest said that addressing this issue would be
part of responding to the above issue (Conversion v. Change).

3. BILLING -

Eschelon indicated that we have not received any usage billing for UNE-P vet,
although we should be getting it on a daily basis. We receive a file currently,
but it does not have UNE-P usage on it. We understood that it would include
UNE-P, with a header or trailer indicating those charges. Eschelon (Tim
Bailey) agreed to provide Judy with some customer numbers, so Qwest can
check on this. ,

Eschelon (Bill Markert) asked when we can expect the first invoices/bill for
UNE-P and whether Qwest's billing is ready to bill for UNE-P. Qwest
responded that Qwest's bill cycle is not affected by type of service (including
UNE-P).

Eschelon (Bill Markert) asked whether billing will be a flow through process
(with the information coming directly off the resale bill onto the UNE-P bill),
and Qwest responded that it believes it will be a flow through (not a manual)
process. Also, Eschelon (Bill Markert) asked if the bills would be delayed or
if these would arrive on the normal cycle date. Judy was to check this.

4. FEATURES -

Eschelon repeated its request regarding the status of features. Qwest (Erica)
indicated that Paul was not on the call to address this question. Qwest (Erica)
said that hunting has been added and more features are expected over the next
two weeks,

CONCLUSION

Eschelon (Don Olds) reiterated that, if Qwest requires submission of orders on
a Conversion as Specified basis, Qwest needs to make the recap function
available,

Eschelon would like a Conference Call on Tuesday, August 15, to review
response/the Order Process. Judy Rixe to schedule this.

Attached emails:

—-Original Messagem—--—
From: Johnson, Jessica L,
Sent: Thursday, August 10, 2000 12:46 PM
To: ‘Judy Rixe'
Cc: Baiiey, Timothy N.
Eschelon 025312
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

Gregory Scott . Charr -

Edward A. Garvey Commissioner

Marshall Johnson ' Commigssioner

LeRoy Koppendrayer Commzfg%ioner

Phyllis Reha Commisioner
In the Matter of a Commission Investigation Into PUC Docket No. P421/CI-01-1373
Qwest’s Compliance with Section 2710of the.  ~ - OAH Docket No. 6-2500-14488-2

Telecommunications Act of 1996 that the
Requested Authonzation is Consistent with the
Public Interest, Convenience and Necessity

AFFIDAVIT OF
F. LYNNE POWERS

I, F. Lynne Powers, being duly sworn, state:

1. I am the Executive Vice President of Customer Operations for Eschelon «
Telecom, Inc. (“Eschelon”). My areas of responsibility include provisioning, repair, and
customer care. ' : -

UNE-Platform o |

2. Inapproximately mid-May of 2000, Eschelon began efforts to prepare to
order from Qwest UNE-Platform (“UNE-P”) lines. UNE-P is a combination of the
following unbundled network elements (“UNEs"): loop, switching, and transport. At that
time, Qwest did not provide information about feature availability with UNE-P on its
web-site. Feature information is critical to developing and marketing a product. It took
more than four months for Eschelon.to extract that.information from Qwest. When -
Eschelon finally obtained a list of available features, the list was incomplete and unclear.

3. In the absence of receiving a definitive list of available features for UNE-P
from Qwest and in the process of compiling its own list of Universal Service Ordering
Codes (“USOCs") for ordering, Eschelon attempted to test availability of various features
and USOCs by placing trial orders (using employee lines) in Minnesota. Eschelon
wanted to submit trial orders in additional states as well. But, at that time; Qwest would
not accept orders for UNE combinations anywhere in its territory, except Minnesota,
without a contract amendment. Qwest took this position even though Eschelon has an
interconnection agreement with Qwest in every one of the states in which it operates' that

'Eschelon does business within Qwest territory in Arizona, Colorado, Minnesota, Oregon, Utah, and
Washington. Other than the information relating to the Minnesota UNE-P trial orders (and certain repair
information discussed below), the information in this Affidavit (including that relating to UNE-E/UNE-

Star) applies in.each of these states. .
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requires Qwest to provide UNEs “in combination” in accordance with the Act, FCC .
rules, and state law.? In those states, Eschelon has opted in 10 interconnection agreements
of AT&T Communications, Inc. (“AT&T"). Therefore, Eschelon, AT&T, and other opt-
in Competitive Local Exchange Carriers ("CLECs”) should have been able to order UNE
combinations pursuant to the terms of their existing interconnection agreements with
Qwest. Bug, for many months, the only state in Qwest’s territory where Qwest would
process Qrd;%’::;;rs for UNE combinations without a contract amendment was Minnesota.
Although Qwest had previously required a contract amendment in Minnesota as well,
Qwest changed its position after the Minnesota Public Utilities Commission issued a
decision requiring Qwest to provide UNE Combinations

4, In Minnesota, where Qwest allowed Eschelon to submit UNE-P orders,
the UNE-P trial orders resulted in denial and loss of features, including Qwest deletion of
features without notice to Eschelon; unclear and changing processes; and customer-
affecting service problems. ‘Minnesota UNE-P trial order customers experienced:

. complete outages, with no dial tone, for a day or more
. inability to call out locally
e inability to place long distance calls
. loss of features
. inability to forward calls between central offices ' ‘ .
5. The problems were too numerous to launch a product offering using UNE-
P at that time, because doing so would not only have caused Eschelon to incur
unnecessary expenses and delays but also exposed Eschelon’s end-user customers to -

these problems. Eschelon also could not afford to leave its Off-Net* customer base on
resale, which was prohibitively expensive. UNE combinations not only have lower
prices than resale, but also they allow CLECs to collect switched access payments that,
with resale, go to the incumbent. Although Eschelon had a contractual right to the lower

! See Eschelon-Qwest [nterconnection Agreements: AZ, Part A, 121 & Att. 3,913.3 & 18.1; CO Part A
8.1 & Att.3,112.4 & 15.1; MN, Part A, 420 & Att. 3, 114.1; OR, Part A, 119 & 36 & Att. 3, 114.1;
UT, Part A, 121 & Att. 3,193.3 & 18.1; WA, Part A T2 0 & A 3,90 1.2.2 & 18.1; see, e.g.,
Agreement for Local Wireline Network Interconnection and Service Resale Between Advanced
Telecommunications, Inc. and U S WEST Communications, Inc., for the State of Arizona, Agreement

No. CDS-000106-0212: Decision No. 62489 (Jan. 20, 2000) (“Agreement”). The Arizona Agreement, for
example, deals specifically with issues such as the definition of “Combinations," see id. Part A, p. 4;
cooperative testing of combinations, see id. | Att 3, Para 18. I; service order process requirements-for -
combinations, see id. Att. 5,9 2.2.2.1, and other issues.

? See Order After Remand, In re. the Federal Court Remand of Issues Proceeding from the Interconnection
Agreements Between U S WEST Communications, [nc. and AT&T, MCI, MFS, and AT&T Wireless,
Docket No. P-421/CI-99-786 (March 14, 2000) (*MN Order After Remand").

* Eschelon has its own switches for providing voice service, When using its switches to serve its
customers, Eschelon orders collocation, loops, etc., from Qwest. In some cases (particularly when a
customer is outside of the area served by Eschelon's switch), Eschelon also orders UNE-E, UNE-P, or
resale from Qwest to serve customers. Eschelon often refers to customers and lines served through
Eschelon 's own switching facilities as “On-Net" or “On-Switch” and customers and lines served through

UNE-E, UNE-P, or resale as “Off-Net.”
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prices and the access payments, it found that the UNE-P combination was not, as a
practical matter, available from Qwest at an acceptable level of quality.

UNE-Eschelon

6. Eschelon raised these concerns with Qwest.” On November 15, 2000,
Eschelon and Qwest executed an interconnection agreement amendment pursuant to%
which Eschelon could order another UNE combination, or “Platform,” which was also a
combination of loop, switching, and transport. See Exhibir 1. Qwest initially referred to
this product as UNE-Eschelon (“UNE-E"). Qwest presented UNE-E as being like UNE-
P, except generally for pricing that includes a flat rate up to a certain number of minutes;’
the ability to order Qwest voice messaging and Digital Subscriber Line (“DSL™) (at
retail rates); and inclusion of Eschelon’s existing resale base customers in the Platform
product.® Qwest said that, with UNE-E, Eschelon would be able to collect the switched
access revenues that are unavailable with resale. Although switched access is also
available with UNE-P, the problems described above with UNE-P remained unsolved.
Instead of addressing those problems at that time, Qwest promised Eschelon that it would
move Eschelon’s base of resale customers to UNE-E. To avoid the provisioning problems
associated with submitting separate Local Service Requests (“LSRs”) for each line being
converted from resale to a UNE combination -- such as the problems Eschelon had
experienced when attempting to order UNE-P -- Qwest said that it would develop a tool «
to do the work on its side. With this tool, Qwest would cornvert Eschelon’s resale base to
UNE-E, without the need for individual LSRs from Eschelon and without adverse

customer 1mpact.

7. Qwest said that it would not be able to complete the conversion of
Eschelon’s resale base to UNE-E for a few months. Therefore, in the short-term, Qwest
told Eschelon to order UNE-E through the existing resale process. See, e.g., Exhibit 2
(email from Judy Rixe, Qwest’s then Account Manager for Eschelon). Qwest said that it
would continue to bill Eschelon at the resale rates through the existing resale billing
process. See id. Qwest said that Qwest Finance would then compare the end-of-month
billed revenues to the UNE-E rates and pay Eschelon the difference. See id. After the

In addition, Eschelon described these problems in 55-page comments filed with the Arizona Corporation
Commission on September 21, 2000. See Eschelon's Comments Addressing UNE Combinations, /n re.

U S WEST Communications, Inc.'s Compliance with § 271 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996, Arizona
Docket No. T-00000A-97-0238 (Sept. 21, 2000) (“Arizona UNE-P Comments™); see also Verification of
Garth Morrisette (same),

§ See Exhibit | (UNE-E Amendment, Att. 3.2, pp. 9-10). Although UNE-E was supposed to be -
distinguishable from UNE-P because it is flat-rated, Eschelon later learmed. that UNE-P-Centrex is also flat-
rated. See http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/pcat/unepeentrex.html (“Until Qwest systems are able to
record and bill actual usage information, Shared Transport Originating MOU and Local Switching
Originating MOU will be billed at a flat monthly rate based on assumed MQU."). See excerpt attached as
Exhibit 3. : R

7 Although Qwest now offers Qwest DSL with UNE-P lines (see Exhibit 8), at that time Qwest’s position
was that a CLEC could not order DSL with UNE-P lines.

* In the agreement, Qwest did not place limits on the conversion of Eschelon’s resale base to the new
“Platform.” See Exhibit 1. Later, Qwest began imposing lirnitations, such as excluding certain features

and lines from the conversion.
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first few months, however, the ordering and billing processes were supposed to change to
allow Eschelon to order UNE-E (not resale) and receive accurate UNE-E bills. See, e.g.,
id. (“Develop billing process for flai-rated UNE-Deal™). MthauOh Qwest later pushed
out its target dates for the promised changes, Qwest continued fo represent that it was
proceeding with changes to allow accurate UNE-E ordering and billing. See, e. g., Exhibit
4 (email and memorandum from Freddi Pennington of Qwest)

-y

UNE-Star

8. Shortly after agreeing to provide UNE-E to Eschelon, Qwest began to
refer to UNE-E as “UNE Star.” See, e.g., Exhibit 2 (subject line of “UNE-Star
Implementation”).” Qwest said that it had formed an internal team of more than 35
Qwest representatives to implement the “new product.” See, e. cr, id. Qwest referred to
these representatives as its “UNE-STAR Implementation team.” See, e.g., Exhibit 4. In
many meetings, Qwest referred to UNE-Star as a Qwest “product.” Sometimes, Qwest
applies a one-size-fits-all approach to “products” that does not account for contractual
differences. Eschelon agreed to the UNE-E interconnection agreement amendment, see
Exhibit 1, based on Qwest’s representations that UNE-E would have certain
characteristics (such as feature availability and avoiding adverse customer impact)
Eschelon expressed concern that it needed visibility into, and participation in, the UNE-
Star product implementation to ensure that the product was implemented consistent with «
the promises made to Eschelon. Eschelon also believed that it could provide a valuable
service to Qwest by providing CLEC input that would improve the product. But, Qwest
did not allow Eschelon to meet with Qwest’s UNE-STAR Implementation team. Instead,

Eschelon had to press Qwest service and product managers, as well as Information -

- Technologies (“IT") personnel, to provide information and updates to Eschelon about
UNE-Star. See, e.g., Exhibits 4 & 5. Qwest said that UNE-E and the UNE-Star product

were the same. See, e.g., Exhibit 5.

9. The process experienced many delays. See, e.g., Exhibits 4 & 5. In the
meantime, Eschelon had to devote resources to dealing with the UNE-E/UNE-Star
problems.that. Qwest had agreed to solve. Now, I understand-that Qwest has testified in
the cost case that “we don’t have a product anywhere called UNE-Star’” and that “ you're
never going to see any offering for like a UNE-Star if that’s the name of an agreement.
It's not the name of one of our products.”'® These statements cause me to ask whether

’Qwest refers to the same product as “UNE Eschelon” (“UNE-E") when provxded to Eschelon; as “UNE-
McLeod” (“UNE-M") when provided to McLeodUSA; and otherwise as *“UNE-Star.” See Qwest
Corporation's Verified Answer to the Complaint of the Minnesota Department of Comimerce, /n re..
Complaint of the Minnesota Department of Commerce Against Qwest Corporation, Dacket No. P-421/C-
02-197,9 7, p. 12 (March 1, 2002) [“Qwest Verified Answer"] (excerpt-attached as Exhibit 6),

10 Cross Examination ofKathryn Malone, Transcript Vol. 7, page 104, lines 23-24 & page 105, lines 5-7
(May 21, 2001), In the Matter of the Commission's Review and anestxganon of Qwest’s Unbundled
Networl\ Element (UNE) Prices, PUC Docket No. P-421/CI-01-1375. See excerpt attached as Exhibit 7.
Ms. Malone testified that she is “Manager — Wholesale Markets” and that she is “responsible for Wholesale
advocacy surrounding interconnection and resale of products and services” at Qwest. .See Direct Testimony
of Kathryn Malone, p. 2, lines 4-6 (March 18, 2002; same docket); excerpt attached as part of Exhibit 7.
According to Ms. Rixe, “Wholesale Advocacy” and “Wholesale Marketmc" were represented on the Qwest

internal UNE-Star implementation team. See Exhibit 2.
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Qwest ever intended to deliver on its promises to implement UNE-E/UNE-Star long-term
product improvements, or whether Qwest was simply delaying Eschelon and causing.
Eschelon to expend resources on a claimed product that Qwest did not intend to deliver

as promised.

10. As discussed, one of the advantages of the November 15, 2000,
interconnection agreement amendment was supposed to be that Qwest would convert
Eschelon’s base from resale to UNE-E/UNE-Star without the necessity of Eschelon
placing individual LSRs to convert each customer. Qwest never completed the physical
conversion to UNE-E/UNE-Star, however, and the UNE-E/UNE-Star product suffers
from its own problems. Now, a vear and a half later, Eschelon has had to begin, at this
late date, the process of placing individual LSRs to convert customers to UNE-P, due to
billing, provisioning, and pricing issues with UNE-E/UNE-Star, ! Although Eschelon has
been entitled under its interconnection agreement to UNE-P pricing since before 2000,
Eschelon will not receive the benefits of UNE-P pricing until the lines are converted, [
estimate that it will take a minimum of seven months and eighteen full-time employees,
as well as additional resources, to complete the conversion from UNE-E/UNE-Star to
UNE-P. [ have already hired 18 people for this purpose. Because we are moving a large
number of lines to UNE-P, Eschelon must hope that Qwest has been forced to make
sufficient improvements in the UNE-P product to allow the transition and the product to
work much more smoothly than Qwest’s attempt to provision UNE-P in 2000. .

11, Although Eschelon has commenced a conversion of many of its lines to
UNE-P, the vast majority of Eschelon’s Off-Net lines are stil] priced according to the
- UNE-E/UNE-Star product. UNE-E/UNE-Star suffers from billing, provisioning, N
documentation, switched access, reporting, and repair problems. : :

Billing

12. Eschelon stil] receives resale bills for UNE-E/UNE-Star lines, instead of
accurate UNE-E/UNE-Star bills. The UNE-E price must be determined to reconcile the
resale bills to the UNE-E/UNE-Star price. This was supposed to be an interim process.
Qwest said that Eschelon would continue to receive a resale bill until Qwest implemented
a process for UNE-E/UNE-Star billing. See, e.g., Exhibit 2. Initially, Qwest estimated
that this process would be in place by the first quarter of 2001. But, the process was

"' On March 1, 2002, Eschelon and Qwest entered into a Settlement Agreement: (Paragraph 6 of the
Settlement Agreement provides that the Settlement Agreement will be filed with the state commissions in
states where Eschelon is certified and has an interconnection agreement. .Qwest is to take care of the
filing.) Paragraph 3(£) provides that Qwest and Eschelon will form a team for the purpose of developing a
plan “to convert UNE-E/AUNE-Star lines to UNE-P.” Eschelon has started to order UNE-P, and the
conversion commenced in April and May of 2002. The conversion has not yet been completed. The lines

that were expected to convert as a records only change were converted first. Those lines were on common o0
blocks (so Eschelon had to issue only one order for the conversion of a number of lines). The more time- o
consurning conversions are other 1FB and Centrex business lines to UNE-P. It is early in the conversion ? .
process. Some customer-affecting problems have occurred during the migration of these lines. Although L ’
-,

the number does not appear to be great at this early stage, each customer-affecting problem is a serious
issue for us. Eschelon is continuing to monitor this issue to determine the cause and extent of any

problems,
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delayed. See, e.g., Exhibit 4. The process is still not in place, and Eschelon continues to
receive resale bills for UNE-E/UNE-Star lines today.

Provisioning

3. Qwest has provisioned the UNE-E/UNE-Star product using a manual
process with a known 50% - 70% error rate. From August through October of 2001,
Eschelon reviewed service order completion notices to identify order-errors and identified
an error rate of approximately 50%. Qwest rejected orders in error or removed features
without Eschelon’s knowledge, and Qwest’s translations personnel were unfamiliar with
the proper process for translating the UNE-E/Star product in the switch. Many of the
errors resulted in adverse end-user customer impact (including repair issues, because the
customers did not always experience the impact of the error unti] some time afier the
order activity). Eschelon objected to the adverse customer impact and the amount of
resources that Eschelon had to expend on dealing with these errors. Eschelon was forced
to escalate virtually every problem. In November of 2001, Qwest finally instituted a
resource-intensive manual review of the UNE-E/UNE-Star service orders. I attended a
meeting during which Toni Dubuque and Chris Siewart of Qwest told Eschelon that
Qwest’s error rate for UNE-E/UNE-Star service orders was approximately 70%. Qwest
has not reported an error rate to Eschelon since then. Although the error rate is high,
Qwest’s internal review has substantially reduced the number of errors that adversely .
lmpact end-user customers. Some customer-affecting problems still occur, however. 2

14, Eschelon was experiencing even more provisioning problems when first
using UNE-E/UNE-Star. UNE-E/UNE-Star essentially provides Centrex functionality on _
a POTS product. Initially, Qwest required Eschelon to order the needed Centrex-line
features on a 1FB. Significant problems arose when a customer was moving to UNE-
E/UNE-Star from a Qwest 1FB, often because the features did not interact properly.
Qwest told Eschelon that these problems would be addressed by ordering the 1FBs with
Custom Calling Management System (CCMS). On July 31, 2001, Qwest and Eschelon
entered into two amendments to the interconnection agreement (relating separately to
recurring and non-recurring charges) to modify the product to allow ordering of 1FBs
with CCMS. See Exhibit 1. These amendments were supposed to alleviate the
provisioning problems without requiring a change in platform, for which Qwest charges
higher rates. The majority of Eschelon’s UNE-E/UNE-Star lines require use of 1FB with
CCMS. After signing the Amendments, Qwest operational personnel informed Eschelon
that CCMS s an old product that the product manager actually wanted to retire and that
few people at Qwest are knowledgeable about it. This is consistent with the problems
that Eschelon has experienced. Both the serviee order and the translations-personnel at
Qwest appear.untrained to provide the UNE-E/UNE-Star produect. ‘Provisioning the.
product is requiring additional resources and manual effort by both Qwest and Eschelon.
Qwest has indicated that UNE-E/UNE-Star orders will never flow through.

" Although Eschelon is converting lines to UNE-P, many lines will be on UNE-E for months as that
process continues, and some lines will remain on UNE-E after the conversion (such as lines that Qwest

deems “ineligible” for UNE-P, such as lines with Qwest voice mail).
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Documentation

15. Other than some job aids, Qwest has provided little documentation to
describe and support the UNE-E/UNE-Star product. UNE-E, or UNE Star, is not ,
identified as one of the available “UNE-P products” in the UNE-P Product Description in
Qwest’s Product Catalog on Qwest’s wholesale website. (See

_http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/pcat/unep.html, p- 1, attached as Exhibit 8.) Because
Qwest did not clarify the distinctions between the products in its materials, Qwest's
UNE-P announcements have caused confusion. Eschelon representatives, including
myself, have had to ask Qwest whether UNE-P announcements (such as Qwest notices
regarding systems changes) also apply to UNE-E/UNE-Star and, if so, how they apply.
See, e.g., Exhibit 5. As discussed, this was supposed to be a short-term problem, but
Qwest has not delivered on all of its promises to implement the UNE-E/UNE-Star
product. Some references.to UNE-Star cun now be found in the systems release notes on
Qwest’s wholesale web page, but product notifications and training were not developed

as indicated (see, e.g., Exhibit 5).

Switched Access

16. Over a period of time, Eschelon complained to Qwest that Qwest was not
providing complete and accurate records from which Eschelon could bill interexchange
carriers access charges for UNE-E/UNE-Star customers."? As an example, if a Qwest
retail customer who has selected Qwest as the intral ATA toll PIC calls an Eschelon
UNE-E/UNE-Star local customer, Qwest should provide a record-of that intralL ATA tol]
call to Eschelon, so that Eschelon can bill Qwest for terminating access. Eschelon needs -
an accurate report of switched access minutes of use (“MOU™), so that Eschelon may
properly bill interexchange carriers for access, Qwest disputed Eschelon’s claims as to

- the vast majority of the missing minutes. Recently, after Eschelon’s agreement not to
oppose Qwest in 271 proceedings or bring complaints terminated and Eschelon was
allowed to raise this issue publicly, the number of minutes reported to Eschelon jumped
significantly and became closer to the number of minutes that Eschelon has maintained it
should have been receiving all along.'"* The increase in number of minutes occurred very
recently, and Eschelon does not know yet whether all of these munutes will be billable or
whether this increase in the number of minutes will continue. :

Reporting

17. Although the conversion from UNE-E (with resale billing) to UNE-P has
only recently commenced, Qwest is already reporting Eschelon’s UNE-E/UNE-Star lines
as UNE-P lines for purposes of the Regional Oversight Committee (ROC) Performance
Indicator Definition (PID) data.. Previously, Qwest reported these lines as business lines,
which is how the lines appear on the bill received by Eschelon. In reviewing the PID

" This is true for On-Net customers as well.
A Although Qwest may claim that this is due to a change from use of an interim process to use of Daily

Usage Files (“DUF""), Eschelon previously atternpted to move off the interim process. Qwest asked
Eschelon to return to the interim process, because the long-term process was not working at that time.
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data recently, Eschelon found that Qwest’s reporting of the lines changed from business
lines to UNE-P lines in approximately November of 2001. See Exhibit 9. At that time,
Qwest changed its reporting not only on a going forward basis, but also retroactively to
January of 2001 so that months previously reported as business lines were then reported
as UNE-P lines. See id. Eschelon was not notified in advance of this change.

18.  Qwest is reporting a nearly perfect billing accuracy rate in the PID data.
One hundred percent of the UNE-E/UNE-Star rates billed to Eschelon from Qwest for
UNE-E/UNE-Star lines, however, are inaccurate, as discussed. If Qwest is able to report
a nearly perfect billing rate under these circumstances, a legitimate question exIsts as to
whether the measure accurately reflects the CLEC experience. Additionally, it is unclear -
whether the PID measures capture the UNE-E/UNE-Star problems that result from
service order writing issues. Qwest is manually handling the UNE-E/UNE-Star orders,
which means that a Qwest.service order writer re-types the order after Eschelon has typed
and submitted it. Orders submitted by Eschelon are often not typed correctly by Qwest’s
order writer. As a result, problems occur, such as features not being provisioned
properly. When this happens, an Eschelon customer will report a trouble, because the
feature is not working properly. Qwest will close the trouble ticket and indicate “No
Trouble Found,” because Qwest takes the position that the problem is a service order
issue, even though Eschelon’s initial order was submitted correctly. Therefore, the
trouble does not appear to be captured in the PID data. : L

Repair (DSL)

9. OnNovember 15, 2000, Qwest agreed to provide Qwest DSL (at retail
rates) with UNE-E/UNE-Star. See Exhibit 1, Att. 3.2, § III(D).' Although Qwest allows
Eschelon to order DSL with UNE-E/UNE-Star, Qwest is not prepared to deal with DSL
repair issues. Qwest has'said that it does not have back end-system records containing
the DSL technical information needed for repair for Centron/Centrex Plus lines with
DSL. On June 3, 2002, Qwest Process Specialist Susie Wells confirmed this to Bonnie
Johnson and Tina Schiller of Eschelon, who are both in my organization. Ms. Wells said
that, when the service order is processed, the critical technical DSL information needed
for repair drops off and does not populate in the Qwest back end systems. She said this
information is lost and cannot be retrieved. Ms. Wells said that this problem occurs in
Qwest’s Eastern and Central billing regions. Those regions include Arizona, Colorado,
Minnesota, and Utah, of Eschelon’s states. This issue is of particular concern to

Y Although separate categories are used for other products (such as UNE-P-POTS), separate categories
were not created for UNE-E products (such as UNE-E-POTS). ‘See Exhibit 9, If Qwest'is claiming that it
included UNE-E lines with UNE-P lines because there was not a separate category, Qwest could have
simply created another category, as it did with UNE-P-POTS.

““Since then, Qwest has also made Qwest DSL available with UNE-P, including UNE-P-Centrex (and
Centron). See, e.g., http:/www.qwest.com/wholesale/pcat/unepcentrex. html ("You may convert existing
Qwest Digitial Subscriber Line (DSL) to UNE-P Centrex with Qwest DSL service. You may also request
the installation of new Qwest DSL service on an eligible and existing UNE-P Centrex, subject to loop
qualification and availability.") (excerpt attached as part of Exhibit 8). Qwest (Susie Wells) has indicated
that the DSL repair problem applies to both UNE-E.and UNE.-P.
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Eschelon in Minnesota and Colorado, because of Eschelon's significant number of
existing Centrex Plus/Centron lines in those states.

Due to this problem, when Eschelon calls the Qwest repair centers (general repair
or DSL repair), the Qwest representative will have no repair reco‘% with the information

~ nesded to repair a trouble in the DSL portion of the line, The Qui&t representative may

not even know that the customer has DSL. At a minimum, the cusiomer will sxperience .

deiays, and Eschelon will have to expend resources on escaiaiing-and resolving the,

problem, 1f it can be resolved. The DSL may have (o be rz-insialled, because the
technical informatior about the existing DSL service is {ost. Qwest has asked Eschelon
to provide additional forecasting and conduct additional momuioring of repair 1ssues
because of this problem. This LMPOSES extra resource burcens on Eschelon. More
imporiantly, Eschelon’s end-user customers will be adversely afiecied. Alsc, becauss
Qwest.wholesale repair for DSL with Centrex Plus/Centron lines is not truly avatlable for
UNE-E or UNE-P, due to the missing repair information, Eschelon is discouraged from

-selling DSL to its customers.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.
- Dated this 7% day of June 2002.

& m/%w/ ' - ) """
7 |

F. Lynne Powers

STATE OF IVIINNESOTA )
' ) ss.

COUNTY OF HENNEPIN )

SUBSCIRIBED‘AND SWORN TO before me this 7% day of June, 2002, by F. Lynne -
Powers who certifies that the foregoing is true and correct to best of her knowledge and -

belief, )

Witness my hand and official seal.

Aovals £ dnd

Notary Fidblic

by

DOUGLAS L STRAND
NOTARY PUBLIC - MINNESOTA *

.-5_'{“;3:&

A |y Commission Exores Jan, 3, 2608

My cominission expires: .

Q’NJ“;L\J_M 3/ ADe5 -

v {
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July 10, 2002
By facsimile & overnight mail

Commissioner Marc Spitzer
Commissioner Jim Irvin

Arizona Corporation Commission
1200 West Washington

Phoenix, Anzona 85007-2996

Re:  AZ Docket N,os‘ RT-00000F-02-0271, T-00000A-97-0238
Dear Commussioner Spitzer and Commissioner Irvin:

.Eschelon Telecom, Inc” (“Eschelon”) received a copy of your letters to the Parties
in Arizona Docket Numbers RT-00000F-02-0271 and T-00000A-97-0238.
Commissioner Spitzer asked the parties to address the differences in the letters submitted
by Qwest and Eschelon.- Therefore, Eschelon submits this Reply to Qwest’s letter to the
Commussion of June 27, 2002 (“Qwest’s June 27 Letter”) and the Response of Qwest
Corporation to Staff’s Request for Comment dated June 27, 2002 (“Qwest’s
Comments”). Because Qwest criticized Eschelon’s previous letter as.“unverified
rhetonic” (see Qwest’s June 27 Letter, p. 1), Eschelon attaches exhibits to further support
the information provided. , - I o g

‘Change Management Process

The Change Management Process (“CMP™) is a primary example of an area in

- which the information provided by Eschelon and Qwest varies greatly. Eschelon has
participated in the CMP (formerly “CICMP”) for about as long as any Competitive Local
Exchange Camer (“CLEC™). Although Qwest’s June 27 Letter and Qwest’s Comments
characterize CMP as though it were an arm of the 271 process, that is not the case.
Eschelon’s participation in CMP was not some effort to involve itself in the 271
proceedings. Quite the reverse is true. Long after Eschelon’s initial participation in
CMP, some 271 issues were interjected into the CMP-Re-design process When Qwest
referred 1ssues from the 271 workshops to the CMP Re-design team. Although some 271
issues were discussed, participation in CMP is far from being the same as participation in -
271. Issues raised in monthly CMP meetings were not necessarily brought to the 271
proceedings. These include commercial performance issues. Even if another party
mentioned some of these issues in 271 proceedings, the participants in those proceedings
did not have the benefit of explanation by Eschelon, which had first-hand commercial
experience with the problems.
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Commissioner Marc Spitzer
Commissioner Jim Irvin -
July 10, 2002

Page 2

Because CMP is an important issue about which Qwest’s filings vary greatly from
Eschelon’s information, Eschelon will provide additional information from which the
Commission may decide which party more accurately and fairly captured the course of
events." About CMP, Eschelon said: -

Qwest had Eschelon representatives pulled from CMP Re-Design meetings,
reviewed but did not disclose written comments by Eschelon on a Qwest status
report that were cntical of that report, required Eschelon to withdraw a Change
Request relating to anti-competitive behavior before it was distributed to other
CLECs, and took other steps to inhibit Eschelon’s participation in CMP/CMP Re-
Design and prevent information from becoming known. Finally, Eschelon’s
President personally, attended CMP monthly and Re-Design meetings to
determine whether Q_wést’s attacks on Eschelon representatives were fair and
whether Qwest’s representations that CMP issues could be resolved just as well
outside of CMP were accurate. Eschelon’s President concluded that Qwest’s
statements were not fair or accurate and the Eschelon’s CMP participation was
appropnate and necessary (o resolve critical business issues. Eschelon’s President
encouraged Gordon Martin of Qwest to also attend the CMP meetings to gain an
understanding of that process and Eschelon’s perspective. Mr. Martin did not do

S0.

See Eschelon’s Letter to Commissioner Spitzer, p. 5 (June 24, 2002) (“Eschelon’s

June 24 Letter”). Qwest did not address Eschelon’s first statement from the above .
quotation about CMP (that Qwest had Eschelon representatives pulled from CMP Res
Design meetings) in Qwest’s June 27 Letter or Qwest’s Comments. Therefore, Eschiélon
will respond to the issues Qwest did address first and then return to this issue, '

Comments on CMP Status Report

Eschelon’s second statement about CMP was that Qwest “reviewed but did not
disclose written comments by Eschelon on a Qwest status report that were cnitical of that
report.” Eschelon’s June 24 Letter, p. 5. In response to this statement, Qwest said: -“In
fact, Eschelon only submitted specific comments regarding Qwest’s.monthly CMP re-
design status reports on a single occasion.” Qwest’s June 27 Letter, p. 2. (emphasis
added). Enclosed, however, are copies of specific comments regarding Qwest’s monthly
CMP re-design status submitted by Eschelon to Qwest on fwo occasions. See Exhibits 2 -
3.7 As Eschelon indicated in Eschelon’s June 24 Letter, Eschelon’s October 200]
comments are critical of Qwest’s status report. See Exhibit 2. Eschelon submitted a copy
of Exhibit 2 to Greg Casey, Audrey McKenney, and Dana Filip of Qwest on Friday,

' See Exhibit | (Verification of F. Lynne Powers).

? Qwest stales that it attached a copy of Eschelon’s redlined version of the status report as an exhibit to the
report. See Qwest’s June 27 Letter, p. 2. Qwest attached Eschelon’s comments with respect to Exhibit 3
(see Exhibit 4), but not Exhibit 2. Qwest also refers to a “high level” email submitted by Eschelon. See
Qwest’s June 27 Letter, p. 2. A copy of that separate email is attached as Exhibit §.
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October 5, 2001 and to Andrew Crain on October 9,2001. See Exhibit 2 (cover email to
Mr. Crain). Ms. Filip 1s Qwest’s Senior Vice President of Global Service Delivery, and
Mr. Crain 1s 2 Qwest attorney. Both Ms. Filip and Mr. Crain are Core Team Members of
the CMP Re-design Team. See Exhibit 6. ' :

After Eschelon submitted its October 2001 comments on Qwest’s CMP status
report to Qwest, Mr. Crain reportedly mentioned the comments to WorldCom'’s attomney
Thomas Dixon. Mr. Dixon is an active member of the CMP Re-design Team and active
participant in the 271 proceedings in several states, including Arizona. Mr. Dixon asked
Mr. Crain for a copy of Eschelon’s comments. Mr. Craip responded that he was “mixed
up.” See Exhibit 7. Although Mr. Crain had Eschelon’s comments in his possession at
the time, as shown by Exhibit 2, Mr. Crain told Mr. Dixon that. Eschelon had not “sent
anything.” See Exhibit 7. Despite these facts,-Qwest represents to the Commission that
“Qwest in no way attempted to limit the distribution or use of Eschelon’s comments.”

Qwest’s June 27 Letter, p. 3.

With respect to the October 2001 comments, Eschelon management agreed to
-provide them directly to Qwest management, instead of submjtting them by email to the
entire CMP Re-design Team. Eschelon did so for two reasons: (1) to show a spirit of
cooperation because Qwest had indicated that it would resolve pressing disputes with
Eschelon (which it later did not do); and (2) to respond to attacks by Ms. Filip and
Ms. McKenney on Eschelon’s participation in the CMP Re-design process made with the
purpose of decreasing that participation. See Exhibit 8; see also discussion below. In.
these situations, Ms. McKenney sometimes characterized Eschelon as a “bad” busines_fi;"
partner. Given Qwest’s monopoly supplier position, Eschelon did not need to be g
expressly reminded that Qwest had the ability to punish conduct it deemed to be “bad.”

Withdrawal of Change Request Relatine to Owest Anti-Cempetitive Conduct:

Eschelon’s third statement about CMP was that Qwest “required Eschelon to
withdraw a Change Request relating to anti-competitive behavior before it was ’
distributed to other CLECs.” Eschelon’s June 24 Letter, p. 5. In September of 2001,
CLECs participated in a call to-discuss CMP issues. One of the 1ssues discussed was
whether a Change Request would be the appropnate vehicle to raise with Qwest the topic
of anti-competitive conduct. Allegiance Telecom (“Allegiance”) said that it had recently
expenenced instances when it bélieved Qwest personnel gave false information to
Allegiance’s customers (such as that the customers’ service would go down if they
proceeded to converting with Allegiance). Eschelon said it had recently had a similar
experience. They agreed that a Change Request would be an appropriate avenue for

* addressing these issues.

‘ On or about September 25, 2001, Allegiance submitted its injtia) Change Request
relating to this issue. See Exhibit 9. Allefiance asked Qwest to establish an improved
process for reporting occurrences of anti-competitive behavior, including a single point of
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contact, a thorough investigation, an appropriate and timely response to CLECs, and
proper training of Qwest personnel to prevent future occurrences. See id. Qwest
assigned the Change Request number PCC092701-3. See id. The initial Change Request
contained the name and badge number for the Qwest technician alleged to have made
-Inappropriate statements. Eschelon copied the description of the Change Request,

- containing this information from Qwest’s web page. See id. Shortly afterward, Eschelon
could not find the Change Request on the web page. Today, a slightly modified version
of the Change Request (without the technician-identifying information) is posted on the
web page with the archived Change Requests, and it has a “Withdrawn” status. See
‘Exhibit 10. Allegiance has indicated that Qwest met with Allegiance in October of 2001
and that Qwest, including Ms. McKenney, asked Allegiance to withdraw the Change
Request. Qwest’s written Status History for the Change Request (posted on the Qwest
web page), however, does not documnent the meeting between Allegiance and Qwest or
the fact that Qwest asked Allegiance to withdraw the Change Request. See Exhibit-10.

On September 28, 2001, Eschelon also submitted a Change Request relating to
this issue to the Qwest CMP. See Exhibit 11. Eschelon described a situation in which a
Qwest representative told a customer switching to Eschelon that Eschelon was filing for
bankruptcy, which was not a true statement. See id. Eschelon asked Qwest to develop a
wntten process to help prevent similar situations in the future. See id. Eschelon asked
Qwest to include in the process steps for training Qwest employees, reporting the
conduct, responding to such situations, and communicating to CLECs on the action
taken. See id. As in the.case of the Allegiance Change Request, Eschelon was seeking a
process solution and was not simply reporting an isolated incident.® Qwest is requireféj‘to
provide a Change Request number to the requesting CLEC and log that number into its
database within two days after receiving a completed CR. .See CMP Document at §53.°
Qwest did not do so and said, on October 10, 2001, that it had not provided a number
because it was “clarifying this issue intemnally.” See Exhibit 12. The documented CMP
process does not provide for such a step. Qwest (Ms. McKenney and Ms. Filip) asked
Eschelon to withdraw the Change Request from CMP, indicating Qwest did not believe

* When Eschelon later riised an issue relating to the handling of these Change Requests with the CMP Re-
design team, Qwest criticized Eschelon for using technician-identifying information in its Change Request
and stated that this was one of the reasons that Qwest asked Eschelon.to withdraw the Change Request.
Eschelon pointed out that this was not the reason given to Eschelon at the time and that Eschelon's Change
Request did not contain technician-identifying information. Qwest confused the Change Requests
submitted by Allegiance and Eschelon. Eschelon did distribute the Allegiance Change Request to the Core
Re-design Team at the Jater date, but the information provided was taken from Qwest's published web
-page.

“ Eschelon remains.dissatisfied with Qwest’s approach to these issues. Since then, Eschelon has reported to
Qwest additional instances of inappropriate comments by Qwest representatives to Eschelon customers.
Afterward, Qwest provides, at most, a vague statement that Qwest investigated and will take appropriate
steps. Eschelon does not know what steps were taken either in the particular case or to avoid additional
instances in the future. If Qwest had accepted the Change Requests of Eschelon and Allegiance, perhaps a
befter process would be in place by now. :

* See http:/Iwww.qwest.com/wholesale/cmp/re-design. html.
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that circulating such examples to other CLECs was consistent with the requirement not to
oppose Qwest 1n 271. Eschelon withdrew the Change Request.

Qwest admits that it asked Eschelon to withdraw the Change Request. See
Qwest’s June 27 Letter, p. 3. Qwest claims that its only reason for doing so was that the
“issue related to employee performance, rather than a systemic process issue.” Jd. In that
case, according to the governing CMP Document and consistent with the handling of
other Change Requests at the time, Qwest should have assigned the Change Request a
number, posted the Change Request on its wholesale web page, stated in a written
response its position that the issue related to employee performance, posted that response
(and its request to withdraw) as part of the Status History, and given the Change Request
a published status of“Withdgawn.” Qwest followed none of these documented

procedures.

Moreover, in both the Eschelon and the Allegiance situations, Ms. McKenney was
involved in asking a CLEC to withdraw a Change Request. Ms. McKenney is Senior
Vice President of Wholesale Business Development at Qwest. Ms. McKenney is not a
member of the CMP team or the service management team. Ms, McKenney handled the
bulk of the negotiations of unfiled agreements with Eschelon. The reason given by
Quwvest for its request to withdraw the Change Request does not explain Ms. McKenney’s

mvolvement.

Other Qwest Steps to Inhibit Eschelon’s CMP Participation

Eschelon’s fourth statement about CMP was that Qwest “took other steps to i
inhibit Eschelon’s participation in CMP/CMP Re-design and prevent information from
becoming known.” Eschelon’s June 24 Letter, p. 5. Qwest claims that Eschelon’s
participation in CMP was “full” and “never restricted.” See Qwest’s June 27 Letter, p. 3
& Qwest’s Comments, p. 7. In Apri) and June of 2001, however, Ms. McKenney of
Qwest was calling Eschelon’s President to complain that Eschelon should not be
participating in Qwest’s CMP meetings. Eschelon attempted to reason with Qwest by
explaining Eschelon’s business need for participating in CMP and describing the
competitive disadvahtage to Bschelon if prevented from participating in CMP. See, e.g.,
Exhibit 13. A comparison of Exhibit 13 with Qwest’s June 27 Letter and Qwest’s .
Comments raises the question of why Eschelon had to make these arguments at all, if
Eschelon’s participation in CMP was as free and uninhibited as suggested by Qwest.
Note that Ms. McKenney did not write back to Eschelon and say that there has been some
misunderstanding and, of course, Eschelon could participate freely in CMP. That was not

Qwest’s position.

, Qwest’s efforts to inhibit Eschelon’s CMP participation also extended to CMP
~  Re-design meetings. In October of 2001, for example, Ms. Filip specifically asked

Eschelon to refrain from participating in a CMP Re-design Team discussion of the

ntenm process for the Qwest Product Catalog (“PCAT”). See Exhibit 8. Despite
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Eschelon’s strong objections to the PCAT process, Eschelon believed it did so, as Qwest
requested. See id. Nonetheless, Ms. Filip called Eschelon immediately after that session
to complain that Lynne Powers of Eschelon had provided some comments when she
should have been silent. The effects of Eschelon’s silence on this particular dccasion far
outlasted the particular meeting. Qwest made many changes to the PCAT with either no
notice to CLECs of the particular change or at least no red-lining accompanying a notice
to show the nature of the change. By the time Eschelon was able to participate on this
1ssue again, Qwest argued that it was too late to go back and provide information to
CLECs on the changes made earlier. Therefore, Eschelon and other CLECs never
received red-lined documents showing what had changed for many changes to the PCAT.

Ms. Filp and Ms. McKenney generally took the position that the Escalation
Letter barring Eschelon from participating in 271 proceedings® also entailed that
Eschelon should either be silent or support Qwest’s position on other issues in the CMP
monthly and Re-design processes. Qwest said that Eschelon had an obligation to deal
directly with Qwest executives instead of raising issues in the CMP arena. Eschelon did
not behieve, however, that Qwest could separately address the types of issues Eschelon
raised in those proceedings without affecting other CLECs and that consequently a
bilateral approach would be futile. Eschelon provided Qwest management with a
summary of Eschelon’s pending and recently closed Change Requests to attempt to show
the detailed nature of the issues, many of which affected other CLECs, to convince Qwest
of Eschelon’s legitimate business need to raise in the context of CMP. See Exhibit 8.
Again, if Qwest was not opposing Eschelon’s participation in CMP, the question is raised
as to why Eschelon needed to-expend resources creating such summaries and trying t‘;gi
persuade (Qwest of the need for Eschelon’s participation. Qwest verbally opposed
Eschelon’s arguments. On October 16, 2001, Ms. Filip told me and Bschelon’s President
on a conference call that Qwest expected Eschelon to not only withdraw the Change
Request discussed above but also limit Eschelon’s participation in other ways. For
example, Ms. Filip asked Eschelon to reduce the number of communications to other
CLECs and the testers’ concerning Qwest’s failings (such as by not copying-emails to
other members of the CMP Re-design Team) and discuss performance issues off line
rather than in meetings attended by others. '

The arguments with Qwest about the “allowable” level of Eschelon’s participation
in CMP and CMP Re-design continued for months. Although Qwest appears to praise
Eschelon’s participation in the CMP process in its letters to the Commission, Qwest does

® See Escalations and Business Solutions Letter signed by Qwest and Eschelon (Nov. 15, 2000)
(“Escalation Letter”) (copy attached as Exhibit 14).

" For example, on April 3, 2001, Qwest’s attorney Laurie Kemeffel told Eschelon that Qwest was
“comnfortable” that Eschelon’s participation in a KPMG question/answer proposal would not violate the
agreement not to oppose Qwest in 271, but she said that Qwest "would not be in favor of Eschelon serving
as a "test’ CLEC." See Exhibit 15. Eschelon had to inquire of Qwest as to the boundaries of the limitations
on Eschelon’s participation, because 1t had become clear that Qwest interpreted the 271 limitation more

broadly than Eschelon.
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not disclose that verbally it took a very different stance in its ongoing discussions with
Eschelon at the time. Ms. Filip and Ms. McKenney represented that Eschelon’s
representatives were causing “havoc” in the CMP monthly and Re-design meetings. See
id. On January 12, 2002, Eschelon’s President summarized Qwest’s attempts to decrease
Eschelon’s CMP participation over the last year as a “constant irritant” to the business

relationship. See Exhibit’16.

In an attempt to put the issue to rest and prove Eschelon’s position, as indicated in
Eschelon’s June 24 Letter (p. 5), Eschelon’s President asked Qwest’s Executive Vice
President of Global Wholesale Markets Gordon Martin to attend the CMP and Re-design
sessions, as Eschelon’s President had done. -See id. Along with Ms. McKenney,

Mr. Martin was intimately-ipvolved in the negotiations with Eschelon, including
negotiation of proposed terms that would limit Eschelon’s participation in CMP. X
Eschelon’s President told Mr. Martin that CMP attendance *‘is the only way that you can
determine what goes on as both sides have different views as to what happens at these
sessions.” See id. Exhibit 16 clearly shows that Eschelon’s request for Mr. Martin’s
attendance was made 1n the context of resolving the issue of Qwest’s persistent requests
to limit Eschelon’s CMP participation. Nonetheless, Qwest’s Letter reads as though
Eschelon made an unrelated and unprecedented request for upper management to attend
CMP meetings. See Qwest s June 27 Letter, p. 3. Qwest then represents to the
Commission that there “was nothing wrong with Qwest’s selecting its representatlves
who had knowledge about the detail at issue at CMP meetings.” Id. Bschelon agrees that
knowledgeable Qwest employees should attend CMP meetings. This is not, however, the
issue that the Commission seeks to investigate and upon which Eschelon commented;
The relevant issues are the reason for Eschelon’s request that Mr. Martin participate m
some CMP meetings and Mr. Martin’s (and Ms. McKenney’s) conduct in pressing
Qwest’s efforts to decrease Eschelon’s CMP participatien without personally observing
the Eschelon behavior that Qwest employees characterized as causing “havoc.”

Excluding Eschelon From CMP Meetings

As mentioned above, Qwest did not address Eschelon’s first statement about CMP
in its June 24 Letter = that Qwest “had Eschelon representatives pulled from CMP Re-
Design meetings” -- in Qwest’s June 27, 2002 Letter or Qwest’s Response. It does not
do so, even though Qwest directly responded to Eschelon’s statements about Qwest’s not
disclosing comments on a status report and asking Eschelon to withdraw a Change

¥ Eschelon took the position that, if Qwest was going to impose limitations on Eschelon's CMP
participation, Qwest needed to be clear in its expectations, so that Eschelon would not continue to be
cnticized by Qwest after the fact for alleged infractions. Ata meeting on January 8, 2002, Ms. Filip agreed
to provide clear, written expectations to Eschelon by January 11, 2001. On January 11, 2002, Mr. Martin
said that Qwest’s legal department advised not to provide a written list. He said that, instead, Ms. Filip
would call Eschelon to verbalize a list and then there would be some documentation of agreed upon issues.
Ms. Filip did not provide a verbal list or later documentation after that date. The parties did not agree on

this issue.
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Request. Eschelon believes a reasonable conclusion to draw from Qwest’s silence on the
specifics of this point is that Qwest admits that it pulled Eschelon representatives from
CMP Re-design meetings. Qwest broadly states, however, that Eschelon’s participation
in CMP Re-design was “never restricted,” Qwest’s Comments, p. 7, so this assertion
needs to be addressed. s

Qwest excluded Eschelon from virtually all of the Qwest CMP Re-design
meetings that took place on October 30, 2001 through November 1, 2001. Lynne Powers
of Eschelon planned to participate in those sessions by telephone, and Karen Clauson of
Eschelon flew to Denver at Bschelon’s expense with the plan of staying through the
November 1* meeting. See Exhibit 17. As indicated on Qwest’s Attendance Record for
that meeting, however, Eschelon did not participate on either October 31 or November 1,
2001. See Exhibit 18 at Attachment 1. The minutes of the meeting show that both
Ms. Powers and Ms. Clauson participated in the meeting on the morning of October 30.
See id. Dunng this portion of the meeting, the parties were reviewing the agenda and
indicating topics that they would like to cover. Eschelon listed several topics. See id.
After Eschelon started to do so, Ms. Filip left the meeting and participated in a
conference call with William Markert, Robert Pickens, and myself of Eschelon.

Duning the call on October 30, 2001, Ms. Filip threatened that, if Ms. Powers and

Ms. Clauson did not stop participating in the meeting immediately, Ms. Filip would
devote all of her energies to making Eschelon miserable. Specifically, Ms. Filip said, in
an angry manner, that she would devote all of her energies to ensuring that

Ms. McKenney succeeded in her objectives. I personally heard her make this statemff;ht
See also Exhibits 19 - 20 (Verification Affidavits of Mr. Markert and Mr. Pickens).*"This
told Eschelon two things: (1) that Ms. McKenney’s objectives were adversarial to those
of Eschelon, even though Ms. McKenney represented that she is attempting to further her
customer’s interests through a “‘business-to-business™ relationship; and (2) that Ms. Filip
would use her position to intentionally harm Eschelon’s business. Ms. Filip, as Qwest’s
Senior Vice President for Global Service Delivery, holds Eschelon’s lines in her hands.
Given the real harm that someone in Ms. Filip’s position could do to a business such as
.Eschelon’s, Eschelon had no choice but to capitulate. Ms. Powers dropped off the call.
Ms. Powers joined the conference bridge to ask Ms. Clauson to leave the meeting to take
a call from her1in the hallway. Afterward, as a result, Ms. Clauson had to check out of

° Because Qwest made these statements verbally and not in writing, it has the advantage of saying that
Eschelon cannot provide written evidence of Qwest's own statements. In addition to affidavits from
Eschelon’s participants in the conversation, the Cormission has the outside evidence showing that
Eschelon intended to participate fully in the meetings but then left abruptly. See, e.g., Exhibit 17. When
viewed in the context of all of the other Exhibits provided with this Reply, that conduct is consistent with
the evidence that Qwest was attempting to limit Eschelon’s participation in CMP. Simularly, Eschelon’s
statemnents in its February 8, 2002 letter (discussed in Qwest's Comments, p. 8) should be read in the
context of all of the Exhibits to this Reply and, in particular, Exhibit 21. Given Qwest’s heavy reliance on
oral communications (even including at least one oral agreement with a competitor, see Qwest’s
Comments, at 8), the Exhibits are as much or more written documentation as can be expected to dispule the
claims in Qwest’s June 27 Letter and Qwest’s Comments.
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her hotel early and return to Minneapolis. See Exhibit 17. Eschelon had raised 1ssues
that it believed needed prompt discussion, but Eschelon did not participate in the
remainder of the meeting on October 30, or the meetings on October 3] and November 1.
Despite Qwest’s statements to the contrary, being excluded from meetings restricts
participation in the process and prevents a party from raising issues at those meetings.
¢J. Qwest’s Comments, p. 7 (“‘never restricted”) & Qwest’s June 27 Letter, p. 3 (“No re-
design participant, including Eschelon, has ever been prevented from raising any issue

during that process.”).

Timing of Qwest’s Ending Specific Pavments to Eschelon

As indicated, the arguments with Qwest about the “allowable” level.of Eschelon’s
participation in CMP and CMP Re-design continued for months, over which time
Eschelon became more resolved that it needed to participate in the meetings. In other
words, over this period of time, it became clear to Qwest that Eschelon was not going to
remain silent or just do as it was told. As Eschelon pointed out in its June 24 Letter (p. 5,

- note 14), during the same general time frame'® when Qwest was having this realization,
Qwest stopped making payments to Eschelon, despite written contractual obligations to
pay Eschelon. Although Qwest is wel) aware of the facts, Qwest complains in its June 27
Letter (p. 4) that Eschelon’s statements are “vague and non-specific.” To address that
complaint, Eschelon will be clear about the payments that Qwest stopped, the timing, and

}

the effect on Eschelon. . v
-
The Consulting Fee Agreement (f 3) required Qwest to pay Eschelon “an amount
that is ten percent (10%) of the aggregate billed charges for all purchases made by
Eschelon from Qwest November 15, 2000 through December 31,2005.""" A later
agreement provided that Qwest would pay this amount to Eschelon on a quarterly basis.
This 1s a written contractual obligation that Qwest has defended as a legitimate settlement
agreement. Qwest is not.claiming that Eschelon breached this provision. To the
contrary, Qwest recently submitted sworn testimony indicating that Qwest now places a
“very high value” 6n the consulting services of Eschelon.'? Given that according to
Qwest’s own account Eschelon was in compliance with the written contract, no
legitimate basis existed for Qwest to stop payment under that agreement. Qwest stopped
paying Eschelon pursuant to this provision, however, after August of 2001. Inthe

' Eschelon uses the term “general” time frame because Qwest payments may be late or may not be due for
a set period of time. Therefore, the exact date on which Qwest stopped payments can be difficult to
plopoint,

"' See Confidential Amendment to Confidential/Trade Secret Stipulation (Nov. 15, 2000) [*'Consulting Fee
Agreement”], at { 3; provided by Eschelon in response to Staff Request Number 1:2 in Docket Number
RT-00000F-02-027).

"2 See Qwest Corporation's Written Direct Testimony of Judith Rixe, p. 9, line 15, /n the Matter of the
Complaint of the Minnesota Department of Commerce Againsi Qwest Corporation Regarding Unfiled
Agreements, MPUC Docket No. P-421/C-02-197 (April 22, 2002) ["Rixe Testimony).
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absence of a breach, one looks for other factors to explain Qwest’s refusal to honor its
contractual commitment while Eschelon was providing services of “high value:”

Qwest claimed that it was withholding payment because Eschelon had
complained that switched access minutes were missing and that Qwest had not delivered
on its promise to negotiate pricing adjustments, and negotiations were continuing as to
these and other issues. Those issues, however, were separate from the undisputed
consulting fee. Qwest could have continued to honor its wrtten obligation to pay the
consulting fee, as it was required to do by the contract, while disputed issues were
negotiated. Instead, Qwest made it a condition of resolution of Eschelon’s legitimate
access, service quality, and pricing complaints that the Consulting Fee Agreement be
terminated. ' Unilaterally enforcing its position, Qwest stopped paying the consulting
fee. The last payment was for August of 2001."* There is a correlation between the
timing of Eschelon’s assertion of its various nghts and Qwest’s stopping of the payments.
Qwest knew full well the impact of its action, particularly in the prevailing
telecommunications market. Because bankruptcies were so common at that time, one
could hardly open a telecommunications publication during this period without reading
about another one. Qwest eams more revenue by the second day. of January in each year
than Eschelon eamns in an entire year. Qwest knew which party’s bargaining position
would be most adversely affected by its decision to stop payments.

When Eschelon raised this issue previously, Eschelon said that it “does not know
whether any CLEC that did stop its participation in CMP, if any, continued receiving
payments whereas the payments to Eschelon stopped.” See Eschelon’s June 24 Lettﬁ;f,
p. 5, note 14. As indicated, Eschelon does not have access to all of the information 3
necessary to make this determination. Eschelon is aware that other unfiled agreements
between other carriers and Qwest have been disclosed, including an agreement or
agreements that require payments to McLeodUSA. McLeodUSA was imtially a CMP
Core Team Member, but its status was changed for failure to participate actively in the
working sessions. See Exhibit 18, pp. 11-12. Eschelon has had no opportunity to review
the various McLeodUSA agreements, nor is it requesting that here. Eschelon can only
state that 1t cannot confirm one way or another whether McLeodUSA (or any other

N

" Qwest attempted to umpose other conditions as well, as discussed below with respect to the proposals
signed by Ms. McKenney. See Exhibit 21.
" The Switched Access Reporting Agreement required Qwest to pay Eschelon the difference between

© $13.00 per line and $16.00 per line from January 1, 2001 unti] the parties agreed 1o do otherwise. See
Letter from Audrey McKenney to Eschelon's President, p. 2 (July 3, 2001) [“Switched Access Reporting
Letter"] (provided by Eschelon in response to Staff Request Number 1:2 in Docket Number RT-00000F-
02-0271). Although the parties did not agree to do otherwise unti] March 1, 2002, Qwest also stopped
paying Eschelon pursuant to the Switched Access Reporting Letter as of September 2001 Eschelon (not
‘Qwest) had complained about other switched access reporting issues. Unlike the consulting fee, at least
some other access issues were the subject of a dispute. When payments stopped, however, there was no
dispute that the $3 per line (approximately $150,000 per month) was due to Eschelon pursuant to the terms
of the Switched Access Reporting Letter. Qwest was not claiming, for example, that Eschelon had yet

agreed otherwise.
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camer) payments, if any, continued while its participation in the CMP Core Team
decreased and, if so, whether the two issues are related.

In response to Eschelon’s initial statement along these lines, Qwest objects to the
possible implication that “Qwest made payments to other CLECs to keep them from
participating in the CMP process.” See Qwest’s Jurie 27 Letter, p. 4. Qwest implies that
Eschelon has no evidence that would suggest that Qwest would do such a thing,
Enclosed with this Letter is a document, provided to Eschelon by Qwest and signed by
Ms. McKenney, that provides that Qwest was willing on October 30, 2001 to pay
‘Eschelon money as long as Eschelon refrained, among other things, “‘from participating .
in . .. Change Management Process workshops.” See Exhibit 21 (Qwest Proposed
Confidential Purchase Agreement § 3). Although Eschelon did not sign this proposal,
Qwest was clearly making the offer. Eschelon does not know whether any other carrjer
was offered and accepted this or a substantially similar proposal. The fact that Qwest
made the offer to Eschelon, however, raises the legitimate question as to whether this
occurred at the same or any other time. :

Eschelon dees not have copies of all of the approximately-100 unfiled agreements
that Qwest has entered into with various carriers and, of course, it cannot have copies of
unwrnitten agreements. In this environment, it is fair to state that Eschelon does not know
whether any carrier signed a document similar to Exhibit 2] and, if so, whether Qwest
continued to make payments pursuant to that agreement. Eschelon is not claiming a right
to this information. It is an issue for the Commission to investigate, i it so desires.

A
.
&
7

Qwest concludes its discussion of this issue by stating that “Qwest’s and !
Eschelon’s billing disputes are wholly unrelated to the 27] process.” Eschelon agrees
.and, quite frankly, wishes Qwest would have taken this position much earlier. Ifit had,
Eschelon could have participated in the 27] proceedings while negotiating disputes with
Qwest. Qwest’s assertion now begs the question as to why Qwest then conditioned

negotiation of disputes on agreements not to participate in 271 proceedings.

CMP Participation. Absence of Complaints. and
Advocacy Regarding Participation in Proceedinos

Except when completely excluded from meetings, Eschelon maintained some
level of participation in CMP.'? Although Qwest was not always as successful in limiting
Eschelon’s participation in CMP as it desired,'® Qwest’s efforts nonetheless forced
Eschelon to expend resources in responding to and resisting Qwest’s position. See, e.g.,
Exhibits 8 & 13. Those resources could have been expended on other CLEC business.

t Although Eschelon managed to maintain some leve] of participation in CMP and CMP Re-design, Qwest
succeeded particularly in chilling the number of live examples of problems with commercial performance

that Eschelon brought to the meetings.
' As to whether Qwest attempted to influence Eschelon’s leve] of participation, please see the previous

section and attached exhibits.
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Also, Eschelon had to consider the risks associated with upsetting its monopoly supplier
while at the same time try to protect its own interests. This meant that Eschelon had to
maintain a conciliatory tone and cooperate in Qwest’s requests at times, even when full,

uninhibited participation would have been preferable.’

Qwest also claims that, at any time, “Eschelon could have sought redress through
regulatory or legal avenues.” See Qwest’s June 27 Letter, p. 2 (emphasis added). Qwest
does not acknowledge the following restriction in the Escalation Letter:

Dunng the development of the Plan, and thereafter, if an agreed upon Plan is in
place by April 30, 2001,"® Bschelon agrees not fo . . . file complaints before any
regulatory body conceming issues arising out of the Parties’ Interconnection
Agreements.

See Exhibit 14 (Escalation Letter) (emphasis added), p. 1. Despite Qwest’s sweeping
claims to the contrary, Eschelon could not, consistent with its obligations, file complaints
before any regulatory body regarding quality of service, pricing, discrimination, or any
other 1ssue arising under the interconnection agreement duning negotiations or afterward.
Qwest has not explained why it insisted on the terms of the Escalation Letter as part of
proceeding to develop and implement a plan to address Eschelon’s quality of service
complaints. It has not said why Eschelon could not both work with Qwest to develop a
plan and, until satisfied, participate in the 271 and SGAT workshops.'® When a plan was
successfully implemented, Eschelon could have then filed a withdrawal from the 271 .
proceedings and proclaimed its issues were resolved (as SunWest apparently did, see;r
discussion below). If a plan was not successfully implemented, Eschelon could have ”
filed complaints. Although Qwest’s letters suggest that Eschelon was free to do so, the
provisions of the Escalation Letter were a Qwest condition of obtaining and
implementing a plan to improve service quality, not a provision following successful
implementation of a plan. See Exhibit 14; Eschelon’s June 24 Letter (pp. 2-4).

Although Qwest conditioned obtaining and implementing a plan to improve
service quality upon not opposing Qwest in 271 proceedings, Qwest claims that the
purpose of the Escalation Letter “was not to suppress complaints but to resolve them.”

Qwest’s June 18 Letter, p. 1 (emphasis in oniginal). As discussed, the text of the
Escalation Letter expressly suppresses complaints before, during, and after

'" Also, as indicated above, the limitations on Eschelon’s participation did result in some decisions thaf
lasted beyond the meetings in which Eschelon’s participation was affected or precluded.

** As indicated in Eschelon’s June 24 Letter, this date was extended until the end of July 2001.

¥ Qwest refers to agreements “wherein a CLEC agreed not to participate in the 271 proceeding” and states
that “there were only rwo such agreements.” Qwest’s Comments, p. 3 (emphasis added). Qwest then goes
on to discuss three such agreements: Eschelon, XO, and McLeodUSA {unwritten agreement "'not to be
mvolved in 271"). See id. pp. 4-5 & 8. Qwest has not explained why any of these agreements were
necessary, if the information possessed by these three CLECs and their participatbion would not have
affected the outcome of the 271 proceedings anyway, as claimed by Qwest.
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implementation of a quality service plan. Additionally, as Eschelon previously pointed
out:

[O]n October 30, 2001, Qwest provided two written proposals to Eschelon. In
those proposals, Qwest said it would require Eschelon to “‘deliver to Qwest al]
reports, work papers, or other documents related to the audit process’” relating to
missing switched access minutes to Qwest. Qwest also conditioned payments
otherwise legitimately due to Eschelon upon Eschelon agreeing that it would
“when requested by Qwest file supporting testimony/pleadings/comments and
testify whenever requested by Qwest in a manner suitable to Qwest
(substantively).” Eschelon refused to sign these proposals. The issues between
Eschelon and Qwest could easily have been resolved without these provisions,
which did nothing to address problems experienced by Eschelon. But, Qwest
included those terms as an integral part of its proposals. '

See Eschelon’s June 24 Letter, p. 5; see also Exhibit 21 (Proposed Confidential Billing
Settlement Agreement, §7 & Proposed Confidential Purchase Agreement, § 3).

Ms. McKenney signed these proposals, copies of which are attached. See id.? Qwest
has not explained the purpose of delivering all evidence of the audit process to Qwest, if
not to “suppress” information. See Qwest’s June 18 Letter, p. 1.%' With respect to the
proposal that said Eschelon would “when requested by Qwest file supporting
testimony/pleadings/comments and testify whenever requested by Qwest in a manner
suitable to Qwest (substantively),” see id., it provided no limitation on Qwest’s '
requests, such as that the testimony requested be true and accurate.”> The agreement ,/
simply contained an offer of a monetary inducement to obtain services and testimony”
upon request.” The same document required that the agreement remain confidential.

2% Qwest has actually suggested that Ms. McKenney may represent Qwest on the committee it has said tha
it will form to review agreements with respect to the filing requirement. See Exhibit 22 (Excerpt from
Minnesota transcript, p. 47, line 23 ~ p. 48, line 2 & p. 50, line 22 ~ p. 51, line 7).

2 Although Qwest may argue that this provision relates to protecting customer-identifying information, that
1s not the case. Most of the audit documents contain no customer-identifying information. In any case,
both Qwest and Eschelon routinely deal with customer-identifying and other confidentia) information
without making one tartier turn everything over to the other. As indicated in Eschelon’s letter to

Mr. Nacchio (discussed in Qwest’s Comments, p. 8), Qwest's verbal communications 1o Eschelon
sugpested Qwest's intent even more clearly than the written documentation.

2 Qwest's Proposed Confidential Purchase Agreement (§ 3) also provided: “Eschelon agrees, dunng the
term of this PA, to refrain from initiating or participating in any proceeding (regulatory, judicial,
arbitration, or legislative) where Qwest’s interests may be mmplicated, including but not limited to, formal
or informal proceedings related to Qwest's or its affiliates’ efforts to obtain relief pursuant to section 277 ..
., including but not limited to, Change Management Process workshops, performance indicator/assurance
dockets and cost dockets.” See Exhibit 21. \

% The fact that Eschelon need not be reminded of its obligation to testify truthfully (as alleged by

Mr. Martin) is evident from the fact that Eschelon (and not Qwest) raised this issue. Without Janguage in
the document to this effect, however, the proposed contractua) obligation reads as Qwest intended it — as
requiring Eschelon to testify when and how dictated by Qwest.

* Qwest’s proposal provided that payments would be made monthly so long as Qwest unijaterally
determined that Eschelon was providing services “satisfactory” to Qwest. See Exhibit 21at § 2. Those
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See id. Therefore, if Eschelon agreed to the proposal, it would be placed in the position
of having to offer testimony without disclosing a fact that would bear on the veracity of
that testimony — it had been induced. Eschelon rejected Qwest’s proposals, although it
did not do so lightly. Eschelon viewed this as its Cuban Missile Crisis with Qwest and
genuinely did not know how Qwest would react. .

Although Qwest claims that it was just negotiating routine settlement agreements,
Qwest has not explained why provisions relating to delivery of evidence to Qwest or
testifying as dictated by Qwest are legitimately related to resolving genuine service and
pricing disputes. In negotiations, Qwest would not discuss resolution of legitimate issues
such as missing switched access minutes, however, without also discussing a
commitment by Eschelon relating to evidence and testimony. In its response, Qwest does
not address the language of the documents in Exhibit 21. See Qwest’s Comments, p. 10,
Similarly, when Eschelon raised this question in a letter to Qwest’s then Chief Executive
Officer Joseph Nacchio (which was copied to Qwest’s current General Counsel),? Qwest
did not respond to the specific facts. As Qwest indicates in its Comments, Qwest said
that 1t would not "dignify each of Mr. Smith’s allegations with a response.” Qwest’s
Comments, p. 9.2° After reading the documents in Exhibit 21 and.considering the
absence of an explanation, however, a more reasonable conclusion is that Qwest was
silent with respect to the proposals in Exhibit 21 because the documents speak for .

themselves.?’

Instead of addressing that issue or acknowledging the v'express language of the .
Escalation Letter suppressing complaints, Qwest argues that Eschelon “evidenced a :
continuing awareness of its ability to go to the regulators if its concerns were not.
addressed.” Qwest’s June 27 Letter, p. 2; Qwest’s Comments, p. 7. The fact that
Eschelon’s participation was virtually non-existent in 271 proceedings, combined with

“services” included, for example, Change Management functions. See id. If Qwest was nol "satisfied” in
any particular month, Qwest could, in its discretion, penalize Eschelon for behavior it deemed bad by
refusing payment. See id. ’

* Qwest states in its Comments (p. 8) that AT&T submitted a copy of Eschelon’s February §, 2002, letter
to Mr. Nacchio with ifs filing in both Arizona Docket Numbers RT-00000F-02-0271 and T-00000A-97-
0238. Therefore, Eschelon has not attached another copy with this filing. Although the Escalation Letier
required Mr. Nacchio to meet with Eschelon, he refused to do so. Although Mr. Nacchio indicated that
Ashfin Mohebbi would act on his behalf (see letter attached to Qwest's Comments), the Escalation Letter
specifically identified Mr. Naccho and not a subordinate. See Exhibit 14, Moreover, despite Mr. Nacchio's
representation, Mr. Mohebbi never participated in escalation (or any) discussions.

* Qwest states that it attached a copy of Mr. Martin's letter to its Comments, so Eschelon has not attached
another copy with this filing. :

*" The other point that Qwest states it will not “dignify” with a response is a point that was not even made
by Eschelon. See Qwest June 27 Letter, p. 1, note J. Although Qwest focuses on some introductory
language from a Wall Streer Journal article cited by Eschelon, Eschelon’s June 24 Letter (p. 1) clearly cites
the article as evidence to support Eschelon’s statement that “Qwest continually attempted to distinguish
Quwest from the former company, US West." The examples in the Wall Streef Journal show this 1s the
case. Qwest’s silence on this latter point may reasonably be viewed as an admission that it cannot dispute
the truth of the statement about Qwest’s conduct vis a vis the former US West,
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the absence of Eschelon complaints against Qwest (on non-cost issues),?® shows that
Eschelon was not in a position to put that advocacy to the test by nsking a breach of the
Escalation Letter. Eschelon did argue privately to Qwest that Eschelon believed it had
the right to participate more fully in proceedings. Because Qwest routinely did not
respond in wniting to Eschelon’s letters, Qwest has left itself the option of pointing to
Eschelon’s letters as though Qwest agreed with them at the time. Qwest fails to mention,
however, that Qwest verbally opposed Eschelon’s advocacy in this regard in no uncertain

terms.

One example, in particular, stands out. Eschelon argued to Qwest that the
Escalation Letter’s requirement that Eschelon “not oppose” Qwest in 271 did not
preclude participation in proceedings relating to the language of Qwest’s Statement of
Generally Available Terms (“SGAT”).”’ For example, in a letter dated April 5, 2001,
Eschelon argued to Qwest: “In theory, Eschelon can either shape interconnection
agreements through participation in SGAT proceedings or we can attempt to negotiate
agreements with Qwest as desired by Qwest. . .. Either the Implementation Plan must
deal substantively with the interconnection agreement process or Eschelon must
participate in SGAT proceedings.” Exhibit 23, p. 4. Although Qwest is not specific,
Eschelon’s assertion in this letter apparently “evidenced a continuing awareness” of
Eschelon’s ability to participate in SGAT proceedings. On this particular occasion,
Eschelon not only made its argument but also attempted to act upon it. Eschelon sent a
representative, Ms. Clauson, to the multi-state SGAT workshop held in Denver Apnl 30

— May 2, 2001.
Qwest’s opposition was swift and unambiguous. Shortly after Ms. Clauson

entered the room where the workshop was held, Nancy Lubamersky of Qwest picked up
her cell phone and left the room. Before the first break, Qwest had called Eschelon’s
President to complain of Ms. Clauson’s presence. In addition, at the outset of the first
break, Qwest’s attorney Charles Steese summoned Ms. Clauson to the hallway fora
conversation. Mr. Steese told Ms. Clauson in no uncertain terms that she should not be

_ present. He said that he had 1t on good authority that the agreement to keep Eschelon out
of the 271 proceedings specifically included Ms. Clauson. Ms. Clauson aftempted to
explain the actual language of the Escalation Letter, but Mr. Steese was not interested.
Through Qwest’s calls to Eschelon and conversation with Ms. Clauson, Qwest succeeded
in chilling Eschelon’s full participation. After the workshop, Qwest called Eschelon to
the carpet and made Eschelon explain “‘what Karen Clauson had said and had not said”
duning the workshops. See Exhibit 24. 1In a follow up conference call “‘to discuss
Karen’s participation in that meeting and in similar future meetings,” see id., Qwest re-
iterated its position that Eschelon could not participate’in the SGAT workshops.
Eschelon did not participate in 271/SGAT workshops after this additional demonstration

of Qwest’s opposition.

¥ The Escalation Letter provided that Eschelon could, after notice to Qwest, participate in regulatory cost
dockets or dockets regarding the establishment of rates. See Exhibit 14.
* See Eschelon’s June 24 Letter, p. 3 & note §.
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271 Participation: March of 2002 and After

Qwest states: “Importantly, the Agreement, including any agreement not to
oppose Qwest’s application for relief under Section 271, was terminated in February of
2002. To the extent that Eschelon decided not to participate fully in the 271 process after
that termination, it was Eschelon’s intemnal business decision that mandated that result,
not the Agreement.” Qwest’s June 27 Letter, p. 2; see also Qwest’s Comments, p. 7.
The agreement to not oppose Qwest’s 271 bid did not terminate until an effective date of
February 28, 2002. See Exhibit 25. That agreement was executed on the afternoon of
Fnday, March 1, 2002. See id. Therefore, the first business day on which Eschelon
could actually participate in-Qwest 271 proceedings was March 4, 2002. On March 4,
2002, Eschelon provided discovery responses to the Minnesota commission, including a
3-inch, 3-ring binder of materials, in Minnesota’s 271 proceeding. Minnesota had
completed fewer 271 workshops or hearings at that point than other states, and it was one
of the few states in which discovery had been directed to Eschelon. Shortly afterward,
Eschelon provided similar materials to the Washington commission in response to
discovery requests in its 271 proceeding. Recently, Bschelon filed comments with the
Federal Communications Commission ("FCC™) in opposition to Qwest’s 271 application.
See Exhibit 26 (also available, with exhibits, at http://www fcc.gov/e-file/ecfs.htm]).

Significantly, Qwest discusses Eschelon’s alleged lack of participation in 271
proceedings after termination of the agreement without mentioning that the 271 ’
workshops were essentially completed by then and, when Eschelon has attempted to %
participate, Qwest has opposed those efforts. In Anzona, Eschelon understood that alf
workshops were completed by March 2002. Arizona held special open meetings
addressing Qwest Operations Support Systems ("“OS88”) and Performance Assurance Plan
("PAP”) after that date, but those meetings would have been particularly difficult to.
participate meaningfully in without the benefit of participation in the preceding
proceedings on those complex topics. To the extent that any 271 proceedings in other
states remained active, they were so far along that getting up-to-speed on substance and
procedure in time to participate meaningfully was not a realistic possibility. Moreover,
when Eschelon attempted to participate in the Minnesota 271 proceeding and to support
AT&T’s efforts to re-open other proceedings, Qwest opposed those efforts. In
Minnesota, Qwest filed a motion to strike Eschelon’s testimony. Absence from the 271
proceedings for a period of more than a year has affected Eschelon’s ability to participate
effectively in 271 proceedings at this point. Although Eschelon has attempted to
participate in 271 proceedings on and after March 4, 2002, the reality is that Qwest
succeeded 1p its objective that Eschelon not participate meaningfully for the time period
- when participation mattered.

[ronically, after cniticizing Eschelon for not participating in 271 proceedings after
February of 2002 (see Qwest’s June 27 Letter, p. 2; Qwest’s Commients, p. 7), Qwest wil]
likely complain now that Eschelon has filed comments with the FCC in opposition to
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Qwest’s 271 bid. Qwest has questioned the motives of other CLECs that have challenged
its 271 bid on the grounds that they are merely trying to keep Qwest out of their market

. rather than raising genuine concems. Qwest may do so now as to Eschelon as well
Eschelon 1s not an interexchange carrier (“IXC”) itself; Eschelon resells the long distance
service of another carrier. Eschelon recognizes, however, that allowing Qwest to enter
the in-region, intertLATA market prematurely would be detrimental to Eschelon, as well
as other CLECs and IXCs in Qwest’s territory. When weighing this as a motive for
Eschelon’s actions, however, the Commission should consider that Eschelon nonetheless
at one time entered into the Escalation Letter and said it would possibly even support
Qwest’s 271 bid in 271 proceedings if Qwest's performance justified doing so. That
didn’t work. Eschelon is opposing Qwest’s 271 bid now because genuine commercial
performance 1ssues show that Qwest’s entry into the in-region long distance market at
this time would be premature. See Exhibit 26.

Any Benefit Unrelated to Limitation on 271 Participation

Qwest argues that persuading CLECs to stay out of the 271 proceedings aided the
process and benefited all CLECs. See Qwest’s Comments, pp. 7-& 10. For example,
Qwest argues that developing an implementation plan to improve the provisioning
process for Eschelon benefited all CLECs because the improved process was
umplemented uniformly. See id. While Eschelon agrees that efforts to improve Qwest’s
provisioning process benefited CLECs, as well as Qwest, Eschelon does not agree that
this could not have been done without an agreement to stay out of 271 proceedings.
Qwest could have simply worked with CLECs to understand their needs and the CLE{;
perspective and then improved its processes accordingly. Unfortunately, Qwest was fot
willing to proceed on that basis.*

3OQwest entered into a confidential agreement with Eschelon, which has since been terminated as to
Eschelon, providing for 2 10% consulting fee. See Consulting Fee Agreement, at { 3. Qwest could have
filed this agreement with the commissions and made it available to other CLECs, but it chose not to do so.
The fee was part of an arrangement under which Qwest was supposed to purchase consulting services from
Eschelon that would benefit all CLECs. As indicated, Qwest recently testified that it now places a "'very
high value" on the consulting services of Eschelon. See Rixe Testimony, p. 9, line 15. Eschelon firmly
believes that its efforts were valuable and, in arguing this point, provided documentation and information to
Qwest to support Eschelon’s position. While Eschelon believes that Qwest benefited from Eschelon’s
actions because Eschelon expended substantial resources trying to get Qwest to improve its performance,
Qwest did nol recognize this at the time or actually accept the consulting services. Qwest resisted
Eschelon’s efforts to form teams or otherwise work on a true consulting basis to improve Qwest's
processes. The amount of resources that Eschelon expended to atlempt to effectuate change were far more
excessive than they needed to be if Qwest had accepted Eschelon's services willingly, given Eschelon (and
other CLECs) visibility into its processes, and worked together at an early stage to ensure that processes,
when developed, met CLEC needs. For Qwest to now describe in favorable terms its adversarial position
that caused such additional resource expenditures does not capture the true course of events, even though
Eschelon does agree that its efforts benefited Qwest and other CLECs as well. More recently, it has come

T to light that Qwest was entering into other unfiled agreements at the time, such as reported agreement(s)
ostensibly to purchase fiber capacity, for a discount. If 5o, this additional information provides further
evidence that Qwest’s costs are not cost-based, because they allow for Qwest to offer these “discounts” in
various forms, and the resale discount, in particular, may need to be reviewed.
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What Could Have Been

Qwest attempts to place an unattainable burden on CLECs: to show what would
have transpired if the 271-related agreements had not existed. See, e.g., Qwest’s June 27
Letter, p. 1. Because of such an agreement, however, Eschelon was not involved in the
271 process and does not know whether all of its issues have been addressed. Eschelon
can indicate that Qwest commercial performance problems still exist. See Exhibit 26.
Eschelon can also point out that its business plan is different from other CLECs that were
involved in the process. Eschelon recognizes and appreciates the diligent, resource-
intensive, and valuable efforts of larger CLECs, but their needs and those of Eschelon are
not the same. In fact, none of the “committed advocates” listed by Qwest as participants
in the proceeding have the same needs or information as Eschelon. See Qwest’s
Comments, p. 11. Nor do they have the commercial experience in.Qwest’s territory
comparable to that of Eschelon and McLeodUSA, reportedly Qwest’s two largest
wholesale customers, neither of which participated. Undoubtedly-those participants are
committed, but different business plans and commercial experience are significant factors
when shaping terms of an SGAT or analyzing commercial performance. ’

The existence or non-existence of the 271 -related agreements is not the only
factor affecting what could have been. In June of 2001, Qwest received discovery
requests that, by its own account, sought production of the agresments not to participate
in 271, but Qwest did not produce them. This fact presents the question of what would
have transpired if Qwest complied with the discovery request last June,

On June 11, 2001, AT&T served the following discovery request on Qwest;

Please produce all agreements, letters and other documnents of any kind that reflect
the terms and provisions, or any term or provision, of settlement made between

Eschelon and Qwest.

Exhibit 27 (AT&T’s Thirteenth Set of Data Requests to Qwest, Request No. 126, 271
multi-state proceeding, June 11, 2001).”"

AT&T also requested copies of such agreements with McLeodUSA and a
company called Sun West Communications, Inc. ("SunWest”), Jd. . SunWest had raised
1ssues relating to Qwest’s provisioning of unbundied loops deployed over IDLC with
number portability in the Colorado 271 workshop. On June 1, 2001, Qwest filed a

>' Also available at www libertyconsultingeroup.com/discovery requests. him.
In addition, with respect to any carrier, AT&T requested any “settlement made by Qwest of any dispute
over Qwest's compliance, or Jack of compliance, with one or more items of the competitive checklist set

forth in 47 USC § 271(c)(2)(B)." /d.
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“Withdrawal of Opposition to Qwest’s Petition to Obtain Approval to Enter the In-
Region InterLATA Telecommunication Market” in the Colorado 271 docket on behalf of
SunWest [Withdrawal). See Exhibit 28. In the Withdrawal, SunWest said that it had
reached a settlement with Qwest. SunWest also said that the 1ssues it raised in the
Section 271 workshops had been resolved to SunWest's satisfaction. See id. The timing
of AT&T’s discovery request (dated ten days after the Withdrawal) suggests that the
mention of a “settlement” in the Withdrawa) prompted AT&T’s request. By June 11,
2001, Eschelon was absent from 271 workshops, even though Eschelon had previously
raised significant issues in those proceedings. Unlike SunWest, Eschelon’s quality of
service issues had not been resolved to Eschelon’s satisfaction.

With respect to SunWest, Eschelon, and McLeodUSA, AT&T requested
“settlement” agreements. Qwest specifically states that the two agreements referred to by
Commissioner Spitzer that mention Section 271 proceedings, which include the Eschelon
Escalation Letter, are “settlements.” See Qwest June 18 Letter, p. 1. Therefore, by
Qwest’s own account, the agreements are responsive to AT&T’s request. Qwest
responded, however, by objecting to the request without providing copies of any
agreements.” Qwest said: B

In addition to the Genera) Objection, Qwest objects to this request on the grounds
that it is overly broad, global, seeks information protected by the attorney-client
privilege, attorney work product doctrine, or any other legally cognizable-
privilege, seeks third-party confidential information, seeks information that is _
highly confidential, proprietary, and competitively sensitive, and seeks /,
information that is irrelevant and not reasonably calculated to lead to the K
discovery of admissible evidence.

See Exhibit 29 (Qwest's Objections and Responses to AT&T’s Thirteenth Set of Data
Requests, Response to Request No. 126, 271 multi-state proceeding, June 20, 2001).*

Although Qwest objected that the Request called for “third-party confidential
information,” Qwest did not ask Eschelon for consent to disclose any agreements before
responding to AT&T’s request, despite language in some of the agreements indicating,
that they could be disclosed with express written consent of the other party. Nothing in
the Escalation Letter prevented Qwest from seeking consent to provide copies in -
discovery. In addition, with respect to the Consulting Fee Agreement (f 10}, it provides:

In the event either Party . . . has a legal obligation which requires disclosure of the
terms and conditions of this Confidential Agreement. the Party having the
obligation shall immediately notify the other Party in writing"of the nature, scope
and source of such obligation so as to enable the other Party, at is option, to take

* On every occasion on which Eschelon has been asked to produce its unfiled agreements with Qwest in
discovery, Eschelon has provided copies of them (including the Escalation Letter).
* Also available at www_libertyconsultingeroup.conv/discovery requests. htm.
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such action as may be legally permissible so as to protect the confidentiality -
provided in this Agreement.

Although Eschelon received a copy of the above discovery request directed to Qwest,
Eschelon did not exercise 1ts option to take any action to protect the confidentiality
provided in the Agreement. Yet, Qwest did not produce the Consulting Fee Agreement
or any of the other agreements, including the Escalation Letter, to AT&T in its Response.
Asindicated, AT&T served its discovery request upon Qwest on June 11, 2001. If
Qwest had provided AT&T with copies of the Eschelon, McLeodUSA and other
agreements at that time, AT&T (and any other party receiving copies of discovery
responses) could have ralsed the issues being addressed by the Commission now at least
seven months earlier.”> The Commission will decide whether, in addition to 1dent1fymo
any “specific terms or issues” that were not addressed in the 271 workshop process,’

these facts are relevant.

Conclusion

In Eschelon’s June 24 Letter, Eschelon indicated that it hesitated to send its letter
for a number of reasons, including the state of the telecommunications market, tight
resources particularly for a start-up, smaller company, and the fact that Eschelon has
settled some of its own claims with Qwest and may be viewed as late in speaking out.
Twenty-some additional pages and many exhibits later, Eschelon can confirm that going
down this path has caused resource expenditures. Given the statements in Qwest’s
June 27 Letter and Qwest’s Comments and the Commission’s expression of its des1re for
more information to assess those statements, however, it seems incumbent upon Eschelon
to provide this information. At the same time, Eschelon is aware that some may criticize
Eschelon for entening into unfiled agreements with Qwest Eschelon had pressing service
and pricing issues that it needed resolved to stay alive.”’

With respect to Qwest’s application for 271 approval, Eschelon has stated its
position in its FCC filing. See Exhibit 26. Although Eschelon was not an active
participant in the Anizona 271 proceeding so 1t cannot state how each of these issues was
addressed, Eschelon can state that the unresolved commercial performance problems
described in those Comments occur in Arizona as well. With respect to issue of the
impact of the unfiled 271 -related agreements on the proceeding, Eschelon has laid out
facts responsive to points raised by Qwest that the Commission may use in making its

** A&T has indicated that it did not Jearn of the agreements until after the Minnesota Department of
Commerce filed it complaint relating to unfiled agreements in February of 2002. Although AT&T’s
discovery request was served in the multi-state 271 proceeding, information from one proceeding often also
becomes available in other proceedings. Once AT&T received the information in the multi-state
proceeding, AT&T could have also requested it in Arizona, for example.

% Eschelon believes that it has identified such terms-and issues, because it has identified commercial
performance problems that remain unresclved. See Exhibit 26,

*" When considering relative positions of the parties, Eschelon is a $100 million CLEC with 900
employees, and Qwestisa §19 billion RBOC with 60,000 employees.
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determination. Commissioner Spitzer’s Letier of June 26 suggested that Eschelon and
Qwest address the inconsistencies between their earlier letters, and Eschelon has tried to

be responsive to that request. '

Sincerely,

0

Jeffery Oxley
Vice President, General Counsel, and Corporate Secretary

cc: Chairman William' A. Mundell (by facsimile & overnight mail)
Todd L. Lundy, Qwest (by U.S. mail)
Richard Corbetta, Qwest (by email)
Paul A. Bullis, AG Public Advocacy Division (by U.S. mail)
Lindy P. Funkhouser, Residential Utility Consumer Office (by email & U.S. mail)
Docket Control (onginal plus 20 copies) (by overnight mail) ,
- Service Lists (all parties of record in both dockets) (by email & U.S. mail)
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Goldberg, Tobe L.

N AZ Docket # 00000A-97-0238 & RT-00000F-02-0271 Service Lisl
¥ Oxley, J. Jeffery; Ahlers, Dennis D.; Clauson, Karen L.
Subject: EXHIBITS to Eschelon's Reply to Qwest's 06-27-02 Letter to the Commission - Docket Nos.

00000A-87-0238 & RT-00000F-02-0271

Enclosed are the Exhibits to Eschelon's Reply.

Earlier today, Eschelon submitted its Reply to Qwest’s letter to the Commission of June 27, 2002
(“Qwest’s June 27 Letter”) and the Response of Qwest Corporation to Staff’s Request for Comment dated June
27,2002 (“Qwest’s Comments”) by email. As the exhibits were not enclosed with that email, Eschelon is
resending the Reply with the exhibits. All but two of the exhibits are available electronically. The two that are
not will be included with the hard copy of the Reply that will sent by U.S. mail tomorrow. Hard copies of all of
the exhibits will be included with the Reply sent to the Commissioners, Qwest, and Docket Control. To save
expense (and trees), hard copies of the exhibits available electronically will not be sent to the remainder of the
service list with the Reply, but will be made available upon request.

Reply (sent by email earlier foday):

Spitzerirhuty02.doc
EXHIBITS (which were not included in earlier email):

bits 1-5:

EschExh1 . doc EschExhZ.doc EschExh3.doc EschExh4.doc EschExhb.doc [

Exhibit 6:

"CMP Re-Design Core Team Membership - Revised 10-31-01"
See hilp://www.qwes!i.com/wholesale/cmp/redesign.html {CMP Re-Design/Team Members)

Exhibils 7-9

3

AL

EschExh?.doc EschExhB.dac EschExhS.doc

Exhibit 10:

Allegiance CR# PC092701-3 {Product and Process - Archived CRs)
See
b—ﬁp_:[/www.owesl.com/wholesale/downloads/7002/o207OB/CL‘EC_Chanoe“ReouestProductProcess_Archive“ReQQrts.Qdf .

Exhibits 11-16:

EschExhii.doc EschExh12.doc EschExh13.doc EschExh14.doc EschExht5.doc EschExh16.doc

Exhibit 17 (nol available electronically, will be served to Service Lisl by U.S. mail):




Exhibit 17 is a travel itinerary (showing travel scheduled through Nov. 1, 2001) and a hotel bill (showing early
departure on Oct. 30, 2001) ‘

Fxhibit 18:

CMP Re-Design Meeting Oct. 30 - Nov. 1 Final Minutes 11-30-01"
http:/iwww.qwest.com/wholesale/cmp/redesian.htrnIGMP (CMP Re-design/Meeting Minutes)

Exhibit 19:

EschExh18.doc

Exhibit 20;
=
EschExh20.doc

Exhibit 21 (not available electronically; will be served to Service List by U.S. mail):

. Exhibit 21 contains two Qwest proposals signed by Audrey McKenney (Proposed Confidential Billing Settlement
Agreement and Proposed Confidenti‘al Purchase Agreement) :

Exhibits 22-25:

EsthExh22.doc EschExh23.doc EschExh24.doc EschExh25.doc

:hibit 26 (also available, with exhibits, at http://www fec.oov/e-file/ects html)

s

EsthExh26.doc

Exhibit 27 (Also available at www libertyconsulting proup com/discovery_requests.htm.)

EschExh27, doc

Exhibit 28:

EschExh28.doc s

Exhibit 29: (Also available at www libertyconsultinggroun corn/discovery_requests htm.)

EschExh29a. doc

P nse sheets available at http//www libertyconsultinggroup com/Discoverv/ResDonses%ZOATT%2013th°’0205€t.odf




Tobe L. Goldberg

Jal Secretary
Regulatory, Law & Policy Department
Eschelon Telecom, Inc.
730 Second Avenue S., Suite 1200
Minneapolis, MN 55402
(612) 436-6084 (voice)
(612) 436-6816 (fax)
tigoldberg@eschelon.com

S




